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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SLEEHEWRER

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F 12 A31BILFE

2023 2022
2023 % 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBFTT
(Restated)
(EH)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FR(FER)FHE (488,791) 158,079
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME Hih2m (&E), W
Other comprehensive loss that may be reclassified REBHMAIGEETHBEEE
to profit or loss in subsequent periods: B H M 2 &S
Exchange differences: MEHZ5 :
Exchange differences on translation of BINEBTMEEN 58
foreign operations (4,002) (82,723)
Net other comprehensive loss that may be REERRETREET D EE R
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods — H)E {th 2 M 518558 (4,002) (32,723)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income that will not be REEBHE TS EFTHEEEE
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods: HEMEE (E518),/ W ¢
Equity investment designated at fair value through  #§ EEM’&/’TJFEJEH,H&@J
other comprehensive (loss)/income: STAEMEE (E5E), K
IRIERE -
Changes in fair value NABEED (8,830) 2,744
Net other comprehensive (loss)/income that will not REREHE TS ETNHEEER
be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent MEMEE (BB) RS FE
periods (8,830) 2,744
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR, £ARt2EAEE  BB%
NET OF TAX (12,832) (29,979)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME FRAZHE(BR) WL
FOR THE YEAR (501,623) 128,100
Attributable to: AR AT FEM -

Owners of the parent [SYNCIEZIN (501,623) 128,100
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AustAsia Group Ltd.
AEEEERAT

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mE PRI R

31 December 2023
2023%F12A31H

31 December 31 December 1 January
12831H 12H5318 1518
2023 2022 2022
2023F 2022%F 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HisE ARETT AREFIT AREF T
(Restated) (Restated)
(gE7) (FeE7)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment MmE - BB KR 15 3,361,082 3,175,200 2,654,574
Right-of-use assets TREEE 16(a) 1,518,608 1,356,311 1,027,768
Intangible assets BmVEE 17 5,103 3,301 4,970
Biological assets EYEE 21 3,541,014 3,450,288 3,045,650
Equity investment designated at EEAAAABEFER
fair value through other HEHH AEMEEK
comprehensive income mERIERE 14 - 8,511 5,203
Other long-term assets HitRHEE 18 8,779 66,576 51,461
Long-term receivable RHAEW IR 19 - 84,992 75,584
Total non-current assets FERBEELE 8,434,586 8,145,179 6,865,210
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories =BE 20 1,311,682 1,304,146 1,024,350
Biological assets EYMEE 21 512,402 380,267 313,794
Trade receivables FE U RIE 22 367,049 350,961 297,110
Prepayments, other receivables and TR FUE - B EUIE
other assets MEMEE 23 277,437 155,901 119,395
Cash and cash equivalents ReERReEE 24 273,999 397,946 141,190
Pledged deposits [BEiEEEE 24 209 5,986 7,032
Total current assets MENEERE 2,742,778 2,595,207 1,902,871
CURRENT LIABILITIES RESE
Trade payables FET 3R 25 785,309 1,058,287 507,760
Other payables and accruals ﬁfnﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ&rééﬂﬁa 26 368,999 477,394 244,871
Share-based payment liability AR D BERER A - = 29,247
Loans from a former shareholder SIS - 40,167
Interest-bearing bank borrowings TESRITIER 27 2,016,413 868,093 417,966
Lease liabilities HEAE 16(b) 70,513 75,707 34,757
Deferred income FEIEMA 3,628 4,800 10,178
Tax payable JE AT 5K 7,787 4,062 6,870
Total current liabilities mBBERHE 3,252,649 2,488,343 1,291,816
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PRI R

31 December 2023
202312 A31H

31 December 31 December 1 January
12831H 12A31H 1518
2023 2022 2022
2023 % 20224 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
B ARETT AREFT AREF T
(Restated) (Restated)
(gE7) (FeE7)
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS & (&) &EFE (509,871) 106,864 611,055
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEEHAERRBAEE
LIABILITIES 7,924,715 8,252,043 7,476,265
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTESRITIER 27 1,383,910 1,304,344 1,290,581
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIBEE 28 4,335 4,179 3,825
Deferred income EIEMA 26,090 19,231 21,825
Lease liabilities HEEE 16(b) 1,434,714 1,254,817 928,974
Other payables and accruals Hi N RIBRIERTIER 26 - 95,671 95,868
Loans from a former shareholder AR E R - = 122,669
Total non-current liabilities FENRBE EEE 2,849,049 2,678,242 2,463,742
Net assets BEFE 5,075,666 5,573,801 5,012,523
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to owners of FAREE AELER
the parent
Share capital N 29 2,435,712 2,432,340 1,892,652
Treasury shares JERERiEy) (1,831) = =
Reserves ] 31 2,641,785 3,141,461 3,119,871
Total equity ERERE 5,075,666 5,573,801 5,012,523

TAN Yong Nang
BRER
Director

EE

Edgar Dowse COLLINS
Edgar Dowse COLLINS
Director

EF
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AustAsia Group Ltd.
AEEEERAT

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEeEnB Bk

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRAEAARE
Fair value
reserve
of financial
assets
Foreign at fair value
Share currency through other
Share  Treasury option  Statutory translation  comprehensive Merger  Retained Total
capital shares reserve reserve reserve loss reserve profits equity
HAREETE
BERHTA
B2 EEEN
SHERNAA
Bx  EERR  BRERE  iERE AWESRE BERE AfEE  GFAR  BEER
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR¥TR ARMTR  ARETn ARBTR  ARETR ARETr  ARETn ARETn AR¥TR
Notes — (Note 29) (Notes 30,31)  (Note 31)  (Note 31) (Note 31)  (Note 31)
it (W) (Wds0-31)  (Wisr)  (Bids) (Wis1)  (Wis1)
At 1 January 2023 (restated) 7202341 A1 (#%7]) 2,432,340 - 1840 54777 7515 (43367)  (54866) 2637925 5,573,801
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - - - (488,791)  (488,791)
Other comprehensive ERAMREEE:
loss for the year:
Change i fair value of WANEEHEAEES
an equiy investment HALB2EEENRE
at fair value through other RENDAREEY
comprehensive loss, it
net of tax - - - - - (8,830) - - (8,830)
Exchange differences releted  ERNFHABNELZE
to foreign operations - - - - (4,002) - - - (4,002)
Total comprehensive loss EREEERLE
for the year - - - - (4,002) (8,830) - (488,791)  (501,623)
Issuance of shares pursuant BT EEBRRELTRE
fo the exercise of the
over-allotment option 3,372 - - - - - - - 3,312
Shares repurchased BEBRA - (7,252) - - - - - - (7,252)
Eouity-setled share option ~~ hEREBEMRRERH
arrangements 30 - 5,421 1,947 - - - - - 7,368
Transfer from retained profits ~ EAEEHFIE i - - - 3,212 - - - (3,212) -
At 31 December 2023 20235 12A31R 2,435,712 (1,831) 13787 517989 71,150 (52,197)  (54,866) 2,145,922 5,075,666
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

S A R 3L ft
mEEREER
Year ended 31 December 2022

HZE2022F 12 A31HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRREEAER
Fair value
reserve
of financial
assets

Foreign at fair value

Share currency  through other
Share option  Statutory  translation  comprehensive Merger  Retained Total
capital reserve reserve reserve  incomel(loss) reserve profits equity
WArEEHE
BEEEHHA
At2ENE/
(BB mem
BENDA
R BRERE OAERE HRAERE EERE ANEE 2RNE  EREE
RMB000 RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETH ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETI
Notes  (Note 29)  (Notes 30,31)  (Note 31)  (Nofe 31) (Note 31)  (Note 31)
WE (W) (W91 (W3 (Es1) Wisr)  (Wids1)
At 1 January 2022 (restated) R2022% 1B 1A (EE7) 1,892,652 118,350 470,603 107,875 (46,111)  (54,866) 2524020 5,012,523
Profit for the year (restated) EnFE (HE5) - - - = = - 158079 158079
Other comprehensive EREp2ERE/(BE) :
incomel(loss) for the year:
Change in fair value of an HARBEHEBEERHHA
equity investment at fair value A2 EYENREREH
through other comprehensive ISHER
income, net of tax (restated) Wi (@ eE5)) - - = = 2,744 = = 2744
Exchange differences related to ~ EENXBARNELER
foreign operations (restated) (&%5)) = = - (37 = = - (3273
Total comprehensive income ERRENEEE (B55))
for the year (restated) - - - (32,723) 2,744 - 158079 128,100
Equity-settled share option NEREENEREDH
arrangements (restated) () 30 - 96,137 = = = = - %137
Issuance of shares upon listing ~~~ REBERFT LHRBIRG
on the Hong Kong Stock (&=3))
Exchange (restated) 175,575 - - - - - - 175575
Issuance of shares pursuant RERERET 2ETRD
o share option schemes (M5
(restated) MG (202647) - - - - - -
Capitalisation of listing expenses A7k EMR% (8E3])
(restated) (16,411) - - - - - - (16,411)
Transfer from loans from a former ~ B&AMREE (£27])
shareholder (restated) 177,877 - - - - - - 118
Transfer from retained profits EREBHHA (LEY))
(restated) 31 - - 44174 - - - (M7 -
At 31 December 2022 (restated) 2022512318 (EE5]) 2,432,340 11840 514777 75,152 (43,367)  (54,866) 2,637,925 5,573,801
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AustAsia Group Ltd.
AEEEERAT

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= A h. il — |
mEEERER
Year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F 12 A31 B ILFE

2023 2022
2023 % 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k=3 AR¥T T ARBEFT
(Restated)
(&E5)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING BRETHRMERESRE
ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/profit before tax Fian (&518),/ F8 (469,951) 171,924
Adjustments for: LUATEIEMAE
Impairment of long-term receivable £ B FE WK IR R B 7 89,756 =
Impairment of trade receivables R GRIBRE 7 7,244 =
(Reversal of allowance)/provision (Bm),/ HEMREFE
for inventory obsolescence B 20 (3,362) 3,441
Amortisation of intangible assets R EESE 7 1,709 2,408
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BEREEINE
equipment 7 164,426 145,473
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERREERE 7 25,613 21,908
(Gain)/loss on modification of leases EAE (W) BB 5/6 (23,103) 12,530
Net loss from changes in fair value of EMEBERNABEED
biological assets B8 FRE 21 671,507 132,535
Finance costs & R 8 268,948 219,797
Interest income F B WA (3,516) (3,183)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEME - WE KR EEE
plant and equipment K EE 6 6,521 6,284
Share-based payments ARR ) B ETR &R 6,501 86,587
Operating cash flows before changes in LBACRDINLERE
working capital mE 742,293 799,704
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FE®RD (3 m) 11,840 (262,086)
Increase in trade receivables and JE W R TE K FE A SR
prepayments, other receivables and ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ”ﬁl?‘ﬁlﬁ&ﬁﬁﬂﬁé
other assets 0 (144,868) (90,355)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables and JRE A= R TE DA K2 EL At JE A< R TE K2
other payables and accruals FEEtIEE CRid), /& (415,877) 575,730
Increase/(decrease) in deferred income FEW AL, CRt ) 5,687 (7,972)
Cash flows generated from operations KEEENRSRE 199,075 1,015,021
Income tax paid B ETSH (15,115) (12,290)
Net cash flows from operating activities KRB MRS REFE 183,960 1,002,731
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F 12 A31BILFE

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k=3 AR¥T T ARBEFTT
(Restated)
(&E5)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZHFFARERE
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEME  BEKI&H#EIEE

equipment (523,926) (588,810)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, LEWE - BEKRHEEE

plant and equipment RS s 1E 7,908 4,788
Proceeds from disposal of biological assets HEEMEEMSHKIE 582,598 641,665
Additions to intangible assets RNEEBWEE (1,132) (739)
Purchase capitalisation of biological assets BEENMEMEE (1,291,327) (1,101,215)
New pledged deposits M EERTER (475) (270)
Decrease in pledged deposits BEERIFFOR L 6,252 1,316
Net cash flows used in investing activities KERHMARSREFE (1,220,102) (1,043,265)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RIEEBHMEESRE
Proceeds from issuance of new shares BTHR D TS 5E 3,372 175,575
Shares repurchased mEAEle) (7,252) =
Payments of listing expenses TR RIE - (15,599)
Interest paid EARFLE 32 (185,387) (156,642)
Principal portion of lease payments HERFROARE TS 16 (147,967) (146,664)
Repayment of interest-bearing bank borrowings {Ei&&H BERTTHEK (1,948,671) (666,614)
New interest-bearing bank borrowings G BIRTTIE R 3,196,659 1,106,482
Net cash flows from financing activities MEEYMERESREFE 910,754 296,538
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND e kReFEY CRL),/

CASH EQUIVALENTS hnFEEE (125,388) 256,004
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net HNEEXREBHTE  FH 1,441 752
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ¥R & RIS HEY 397,946 141,190
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FREAESEKBSEEY 24 273,999 397,946
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH & KIR&SEMEBRIIT

EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balance e MIBITHER 274,208 403,932
Pledged deposits [ eieRN 24 (209) (5,986)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the RenskxkmEBAe R

statement of cash flows HeZEEY 24 273,999 397,946
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AustAsia Group Ltd.
REREERLT

Notes to Financial Statements

B EE AR MY EE

31 December 2023
2023%F12A31H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

AustAsia Group Ltd. (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated and domiciled in Singapore. The
registered office of the Company is located at 400 Orchard
Road, Singapore 238875. The Company completed its
initial public offering and was listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "HKEX”")
(stock code: 2425.HK) on 30 December 2022. The
principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and its subsidiaries are mainly engaged in the production
and sales of raw milk, beef cattle and feed products, and
distribution and sales of milk products in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC").

In the opinion of the directors, before 30 December 2022,
the immediate holding company of the Company was Japfa
Ltd., a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled
in Singapore and is listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited, and the ultimate holding
companies of the Company were Rangi Management
Limited and Fusion Investment Holdings Limited, both of
which are incorporated and domiciled in the British Virgin
Islands. Since 30 December 2022, the Company has
ceased to be a subsidiary of Japfa Ltd. However, there
is no change in controlling shareholders of the Company
comprising Mr. Renaldo Santosa, Ms. Gabriella Santosa,
the Scuderia Trust, Highvern Trustees Limited (as trustee
of the Scuderia Trust), Magnus Nominees Limited, Fidelis
Nominees Limited, Fusion Investment Holdings Limited,
Rangi Management Limited, Tasburgh Limited and Tallowe
Services Inc (together, the “Controlling Shareholders”).

AAREBER

AustAsia Group Ltd. ([ARRH]) B—FKR
TN M L W AR I AR AR
EERA c AT FEMBPFFERLLRN 400
Orchard Road, Singapore 238875 °
202212300 * ARABIE K ERAFH
BEVREBBARSGMBERAR ([BR
BT D) FR B (RAARSR : 2425.HK) < KA
AMEEEHRIEEER  mMAMBARE
ZEdE ARLRBE ([FE]) HERED
A REAMERNEERBEARIIERD
DEEMEE -

EZRA  M2022F12A308F © AQH]
MEEZERARAEE (BA—REI MK
MR BEREERT) « WHRFTINEFS
REGMBB AR ET @ RARA B REE
f& A7 ARangi Management Limited & @
EREERER AT (MEHRNERBE
ERMAN) - B20226F12A308# © &
AATBREENWBAR - AMm - AR
AIEARAR R (B FERenaldo Santosat4 -
Gabriella Santosaz & - Scuderia Trust
Highvern Trustees Limited ({E&Scuderia
Trustf= 5t A) » Magnus Nominees
Limited * Fidelis Nominees Limited * @&
WEERABR AT - Rangi Management
Limited » Tasburgh Limited & Tallowe
Services Inc. + 8 [ FEARAR R |) W A& ) o



CORPORATE AND GROUP

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

Name

#18

Place of
incorporation/

registration and

business
HEMAEL,
HfREE R

INFORMATION 1.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 ¥R R B

31 December 2023
202312 A31H

RAREEER (F)

BEHEATNER
AATEBHBEATOFEERBIIWT -

Percentage

of equity
attributable to the

Issued ordinary/ Company
registered AARELERER L
share capital Direct Indirect

BERITLER

AR A E# %

Principal activities

FREK

Dongying AustAsia Modern Dairy
Farm Co., Ltd
RERTRRBSERDA

Taian AustAsia Modern Dairy Farm
Co., Ltd
RRRGHRIGERAA

Dongying Xianhe AustAsia Modern
Dairy Farm Co., Ltd
REMRERAMSER LA

Dongying Shenzhou AustAsia
Modern Dairy Farm Co., Ltd
REMMNEGTRAREERRF

Shandong, PRC
IR

Shandong, PRC
LR

Shandong, PRC
FEILR

Shandong, PRC
FEILIR

USD35,000,000 - 100  Production and sales
35,000,000% ¢ of raw milk
FREEE RS
USD30,000,000 - 100  Production and sales
30,000,000% T of raw milk
REHNEEREE
USD25,000,000 - 100  Production and sales
25,000,000% ¢ of raw milk
RENEEREE
USD40,000,000 - 100  Production and sales
40,000,000% T of raw milk
REEERBEE
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 S R B

31 December 2023
2023%F12A31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REAREBEHR (&)

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

TRKEATNER (&)

Percentage
of equity
Place of attributable to the
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Company
registration and registered AAFEGBETAL
Name business share capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
HRl A ERTLER,
£ MR EE D2 AR A E# Mg FEEHR
Dongying AustAsia Beef Co., Ltd Shandong, PRC USD26,430,000 - 100  Production and sales
RERTATREERBR AT FEILR 26,430,000 1T of beef cattle
R EEREE
Shanghai AustAsia Food Co., Ltd Shanghai, PRC USD3,000,000 - 100  Trading, wholesale
FERERMARAR Rl L 3,000,000% 7T and distribution of
milk products
AERES  HER
A
AlH2 Pte. Ltd. Singapore USD127,927,000 100 - Investment holding
AIH2 Pte. Ltd. 703K 127,927,000% T REER
Chifeng AustAsia Modern Dairy Inner Mongolia, PRC USD85,600,000 - 100  Production and sales
Farm Co., Ltd FEASH 85,600,0003 7 of raw milk and
RERGERHSERAR beef cattle
JREHN R A4 ]
HE
Falcon Dairy Holdings Limited* Hong Kong USD240,100,000 100 - Investment holding
Falcon Dairy Holdings Limited* BE 240,100,000 7T AR
Pure Source Dairy Farm Co., Ltd Shandong, PRC USD187,000,000 - 100  Production and sales
BRYSERAR LR 187,000,0005 75 of raw milk
REHDEERHE
Shandong AustAsia Feed Technology  Shandong, PRC USD12,000,000 - 100  Production and sales

Co., Ltd
WRR D MR AR AT

*

July 2023.

IR

Falcon Dairy Holdings Limited was liquidated on 11

12,000,0003 7T

of feeding additives
SRR I AR E R SR

Falcon Dairy Holdings Limited 22023

F7TANRAER -
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CORPORATE AND GROUP
(continued)

INFORMATION

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

The English names of the companies registered in the PRC
represent the best efforts made by management of the
Company in directly translating the Chinese names of these
companies as no English names have been registered.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), which comprise all standards and
interpretations approved by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”), and International
Accounting Standards and Standing Interpretations
Committee interpretations approved by the International
Accounting Standards Committee that remain in effect
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for biological assets
and equity investment designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income which have been measured
at fair value. These financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately RMB509,871,000. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis, because the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that based on a cash flow
forecast of the Group for the 12 months ending 31 March
2025 prepared by the management, the Group would
have adequate funds to meet its liabilities as and when
they fall due for at least 12 months from 27 March 2024.
Based on the forecast, the sufficiency of the Group’s
working capital for the next 12 months depends on the
Group’s ability to obtain the anticipated cash flows from
the Group’s operating activities and the available unutilized
bank loan facilities amounting to an aggregate amount of
approximately RMB1,196,984,000 within 12 months from 27
March 2024.

2.1

B 75 ¥R R B

31 December 2023
202312 A31H

RAREEER (F)

FRENBARNESR (&)

ZEPHEARNRANELEEAAAREEESR
BEANSHEEBEERXEE  REZH
FW EEMERE T REHE -

EERR LRIBTIEFERNFEES
B AEEFEE T ERO AR FNE

A ¢

B
PR

ZERBHRRTIREBE(BERY B REER)
mE - ETERG(EREEADESTS
(KB et EADEEE ) fENMEER
k#E  K(BEERe R ZESHENT
ERZCBEREER) M ENRBEZRE G Y
REMEB(ATEIDORERTE - ZFY
BRRERBLRAERR  EARREBE
AENEMBEEREERNRAAEENER
HEHFT AL ME2E RSN BIRERID -
ZEVBHBRDIUAARE [ARK]) RE
BFBHFHENBESEAMN T (FRIF
REHHA) -

MR2023F 128310 » AEEM RS EEBEF
4 B ARMES09,871,0007T © &4 B 51R
RORBELEHAERYE  REZEARAE
ERA - BEEEEREMNEE2025F3 A
S1ALE12EAMBESREEN  AEEH
BEXRENESAENB2024F3A27H
BEDI2EAZENEE - BRIBEZEAR -
AEBARRI2EAANEEE ST EHIUR
RAEEBHEECEESESEHREREN
e R BE2024F 327 HE12{E A AR
BANKRSABRITERMERBHNAEARE
1,196,984,0007T °
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REREERLT

Notes to Financial Statements

B EE AR MY EE

31 December 2023
2023%F12A31H

2.1

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Change of presentation currency and functional
currency

Starting from 1 January 2023, the Group changed its
presentation currency from United States Dollars (“USD”)
to RMB, considering that (i) the Company ceased to be a
subsidiary of Japfa Ltd. of which the presentation currency
was USD and changed from an intermediate holding
company to an investment holding company since 30
December 2022; (ii) the Company’s primary subsidiaries
were established in PRC and their transactions are
denominated and settled in RMB; and (iii) the Company
in order to reduce the impact of any fluctuations in the
exchange rate of USD against RMB on the Group's
consolidated financial statements so as to more truly reflect
the Group’s performance. The change in presentation
currency of the Group has been applied retrospectively
in accordance with IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Change in
Accounting Estimates and Errors, and the comparative
figures as at 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 have
been retranslated to RMB and restated accordingly.

In addition, as the currency of the primary source of
revenue of the Company changed from USD to RMB since
1 July 2023, the management also changed the functional
currency of the Company from USD to RMB accordingly.
The effect of change in functional currency has been
applied prospectively from 1 July 2023 in accordance with
IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2023. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity),
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

directly or indirectly, controlled by the

2.1

i BCR (#)

mAEEE (&)
BEREINERRIEER

B2023F1A1HE AEEKAZIEBHE
T (TERT]) BERAARKE  ZEI)AART
%%u%ﬁiﬁﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬁ@%%mw%“ﬂ id::
B202256 12 A30R & - PREAER AR HEE R

WEERAR (VAR EZEHMBAREF
R ERGUARBFEREE (i)
DETTH AREE R FEHE AN EBER S B3R
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Notes to Financial Statements

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. When the Company has, directly or
indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or similar rights
of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.
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2.1

2.2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, any non-
controlling interest and foreign currency translation reserve;
and recognises the fair value of any investment retained
and any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The
Group’s share of components previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
IFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
Amendments to IAS 1

and IFRS Practice
Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction

International Tax Reform —

Pillar Two Model Rules

Amendments to IAS 12
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Notes to Financial Statements

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the new and revised IFRSs
that are applicable to the Group are described below:

(a) Amendments to IAS 1 require entities to disclose
their material accounting policy information
rather than their significant accounting policies.
Accounting policy information is material if, when
considered together with other information included
in an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably
be expected to influence decisions that the primary
users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements.
Amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making
Materiality Judgements provide non-mandatory
guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality
to accounting policy disclosures. The Group has
applied the amendments since 1 January 2023.
The amendments did not have any impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial information.

(b) Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes
in accounting policies. Accounting estimates
are defined as monetary amounts in financial
statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how
entities use measurement techniques and inputs to
develop accounting estimates. Since the Group’s
approach and policy align with the amendments,
the amendments had no impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.
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2.2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(c) Amendments to |IAS 12 Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception in IAS 12 so that it no longer
applies to transactions that give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences,
such as leases and decommissioning obligations.
Therefore, entities are required to recognise
a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient
taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax
liability for temporary differences arising from
these transactions. The amendments did not have
any impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
information.

(d) Amendments to |IAS 12 /International Tax Reform
— Pillar Two Model Rules introduce a mandatory
temporary exception from the recognition and
disclosure of deferred taxes arising from the
implementation of the Pillar Two model rules
published by the Organisation for Economic Co-
operation and Development. The amendments also
introduce disclosure requirements for the affected
entities to help users of the financial statements
better understand the entities’ exposure to Pillar Two
income taxes, including the disclosure of current tax
related to Pillar Two income taxes separately in the
periods when Pillar Two legislation is effective and
the disclosure of known or reasonably estimable
information of their exposure to Pillar Two income
taxes in periods in which the legislation is enacted
or substantively enacted but not yet in effect. In the
Singapore 2023 Budget Statement, the Singapore
government announced plans to implement the
GloBE Rules as well as a domestic top-up tax
(DTT) beginning on or after 1 January 2025. As of
the issuance date of these financial statements,
Singapore has not announced when and how the
GloBE Rules will be enacted, the jurisdiction in
which the Company is incorporated. Consequently,
it is not presently feasible for the Group to
reasonably estimate the quantitative impact of this
legislation.
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Notes to Financial Statements

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following revised IFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these
financial statements. The Group intends to apply these
revised IFRSs, if applicable, when they become effective.

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of
and IAS 28 Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or
Joint Venture®
Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale
and Leaseback’
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current
(the “2020 Amendments”)’
Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”)?

Amendments to IAS 7 Supplier Finance
and IFRS 7 Arrangements'

Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2025

& No mandatory effective date yet determined but

available for adoption
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2.3

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and
in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or
loss resulting from a downstream transaction when the
sale or contribution of assets constitutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor’'s profit or loss only to the extent
of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 16 specify the requirements that a
seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising
in a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-
lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss
that relates to the right of use it retains. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively to sale
and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of
initial application of IFRS 16 (i.e., 1 January 2019). Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for

including
what is meant by a right to defer settlement and that a

classifying liabilities as current or non-current,

right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement.
The amendments also clarify that a liability can be settled
in its own equity instruments, and that only if a conversion
option in a convertible liability is itself accounted for as
an equity instrument would the terms of a liability not
impact its classification. The 2022 Amendments further
clarify that, among covenants of a liability arising from
a loan arrangement, only those with which an entity
must comply on or before the reporting date affect the
classification of that liability as current or non-current.
Additional disclosures are required for non-current
liabilities that are subject to the entity complying with future
covenants within 12 months after the reporting period.
The amendments shall be applied retrospectively with
early application permitted. An entity that applies the 2020
Amendments early is required to apply simultaneously the
2022 Amendments, and vice versa. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of the amendments and whether
existing loan agreements may require revision. Based on a
preliminary assessment, the amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 clarify the characteristics
of supplier finance arrangements and require additional
disclosure of such arrangements. The disclosure
requirements in the amendments are intended to assist
users of financial statements in understanding the effects
of supplier finance arrangements on an entity’s liabilities,
cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk. Earlier application
of the amendments is permitted. The amendments provide
certain transition reliefs regarding comparative information,
quantitative information as at the beginning of the annual
reporting period and interim disclosures. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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2.3

24

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IAS 21 specify how an entity shall assess
whether a currency is exchangeable into another currency
and how it shall estimate a spot exchange rate at a
measurement date when exchangeability is lacking. The
amendments require disclosures of information that enable
users of financial statements to understand the impact of
a currency not being exchangeable. Earlier application
is permitted. When applying the amendments, an entity
cannot restate comparative information. Any cumulative
effect of initially applying the amendments shall be
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits or to the cumulative amount of translation
differences accumulated in a separate component of
equity, where appropriate, at the date of initial application.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets includes an
input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value
of the Group’s previously held equity interests in the
acquiree over the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or
loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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2.4

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its biological assets and equity
investment designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or
by selling it to another market participant that would use
the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3- based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets, biological assets and equity
investment), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g.,
a headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-
generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of
cash-generating units.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories

consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to
an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income in the period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that

person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the

Group;
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Notes to Financial Statements

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(M)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;
and the sponsoring employers of the post-
employment benefit plan;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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2.4

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

4.5%-5%

9%-10%
18%-20%
18%-20%

Buildings and site facilities
Machinery and equipment

Office furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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Notes to Financial Statements

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the year
the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. It is reclassified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at each financial year end.

Software

Software is acquired separately and is amortised on a
straight-line basis over its finite useful life of 5 years.
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2.4

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Biological assets

Biological assets are measured on initial recognition and
at the end of the reporting period at their fair values less
costs to sell, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the period in
which it arises. Biological assets comprise dairy cows, beef
cattle and forage plants.

Dairy cows and beef cattle

Dairy cows, including milkable cows, heifers and calves,
and beef cattle are measured on initial recognition and at
the end of each reporting period at their fair values less
costs to sell, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the period
in which it arises. Costs to sell are the incremental costs
directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, mainly
transportation costs excluding finance costs and income
taxes.

The fair value is determined based on their present
location and condition and is determined independently
by professional valuers. The fair value of heifers and
calves and beef cattle for which there are active markets
is determined by reference to the quoted market prices.
For milkable cows for which there is no active market, fair
value is determined by valuation techniques, for example,
discounted cash flow techniques.

The feeding costs and other related costs including
the depreciation charge, utility costs and consumables
incurred for the raising of heifers and calves are
capitalised, until such time as the heifers and calves begin
to produce milk.
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Notes to Financial Statements

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Biological assets (continued)
Forage plants

The immature corn and sorghum plantation costs consist
of field preparation, planting, fertilising and maintenance
and an allocation of other related cost. In general, a corn
plantation and a sorghum plantation take about six months
to reach maturity from the time when the seedings are
planted.

Plantations in initial stages of growth are stated at cost as
market-determined prices or values are not available.

Plantations close to harvest and the harvested products
of the Group’s wet corn and sorghum are measured at fair
value less estimated point-of-sale costs. The fair value is
determined based on the actual selling prices in the local
market at the point of harvest less estimated point-of-sale
costs.

Gains or losses arising on initial recognition of plantations
at fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs and the
change in fair value less costs to sell of plantations at each
reporting date are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

Upon harvest, the forage plants are transferred to
inventories for feeding the dairy cows and beef cattle.

Agricultural produce

Agricultural produce represents raw milk harvested from
the Group’s biological assets. Raw milk is recognised at
the point of harvest at its fair value less costs to sell. A
gain or loss arising from agricultural produce at the point of
harvest measuring at fair value less costs to sell is included
in profit or loss for the period in which it arises.
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2.4

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:

Leasehold land
Buildings and site facilities

3 to 40 years
2 to 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to
the Group by the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease
term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments
of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
is remeasured if there is a modification, a change
in the lease term, a change in lease payments
(e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.
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2.4

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the recognition exemption for leases of
low-value assets to leases of office equipment and
laptop computers that are considered to be of low
value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS
15 in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are
held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which
are not held within the aforementioned business models
are classified and measured at fair value through profit or
loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:
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2.4

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investment)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investment as equity investment
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under IAS
32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for
trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-
by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss when the right
of payment has been established, except when the
Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part
of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such
gains are recorded in other comprehensive income.
Equity investment designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash

flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation
of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash
flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral
held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of
the default (a lifetime ECL).

2.
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2.4

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement of
ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables and accruals and interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:
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2.4

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (trade payables,
other payables and accruals and Interest-bearing bank
borrowings)

After initial recognition, trade payables, other payables
and accruals and Interest-bearing bank borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held
by the Company or the Group (treasury shares) are
recognised directly in equity at cost. No gain or loss
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own
equity instruments.

Inventories

Inventories mainly include raw materials, low-value
consumables and finished goods. Inventories are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case
of work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement
of financial position comprise cash on hand and at banks,
and short-term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of
generally within three months that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value and held for the purpose of meeting
short-term cash commitments.
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2.4

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, and short-term deposits as defined above,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate
asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
The expense relating to a provision is presented in the
statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

. when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received, and all attaching conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised
as income on a systematic basis over the periods that
the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are
expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income over the expected useful life of the
relevant asset by equal annual instalments or deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and released to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income by way of a reduced depreciation
charge.

24

B 75 ¥R R B

31 December 2023
202312 A31H

T BCR (#)

EXREHEE (&)

e (8

B HEEARKEA A FOREBIITHERIR]
BENHHIRE E R AVAB IR A EEE @ BT
MIAE EMELR AR AR — R ER
F—ERHERIXTIAERRNER (FAHR
BEARKRHBEAGFEREERERTERERE
REE  WAtERFRAESFENHRIEAR
BEREE ARKEREERBEAR) B
WE SR AER - RIREHIRE ERELER
HEEA]THEH -

BT B

WIMRAABRERESMHE RS A AN
IR - AR R EEERBRATME - R
ZABE-HRAXHEB G - MIRRAER
(CPRES T EILES by T NG

B REERR - MEQXREEFARL
WARR - SR AREER TR AE R F B
W BFEFEBETRaREMEEKERE
WEEREER - WALIRITEERT
ABEREREMEEKER

181



182

AustAsia Group Ltd.
REREERLT

Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 S R B

31 December 2023
2023%F12A31H

2.4

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring
the goods or services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group with a significant financial benefit for
more than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer
and the transfer of the promised goods or services is one
year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in IFRS 15.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(a)

Sales of raw milk

Revenue from these sales is recognised when the
goods are delivered to the customer and all criteria
for acceptance have been satisfied.

Sales of beef cattle

Revenue from sales of beef cattle is recognised
when the beef cattle are collected by customers.

Sales of milk products

The Group sells milk products to distributors
and end customers (collectively referred to as
“customers”). Revenue from sales of these products
is recognised when the goods have been delivered
to customers.

Sales of feed products
Revenue from sales of feed products is recognised

when the goods are delivered to the customer and
all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.
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2.4

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments

The Company operates several share option schemes.
Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services in exchange for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”) and cash (“cash-
settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an
external valuer using a binomial model,
which are given in note 30 to the financial statements.

further details of

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period
has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge
or credit to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.
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Notes to Financial Statements

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market
or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-
based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee
as measured at the date of modification.

are met.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met.
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were
a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

However, if a new award is

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

24

B 75 ¥R R B

31 December 2023
202312 A31H

T BCR (#)

ERETEHE (&)

URHHEROAR (B
ERBEEBSETISRI KL/ RS &M &
BRAEFRBORB T SERMAS - HWEBE
BHSSERBIEMS AT mM ISR IERE
RHRETER - REMBEMKRRRL IR

BIHRHEREKR  FRRXZBIERCREBR
g o

1 482 25 A L SR B O (G R AR B RT - T RRBIE IR
BigREEX @ BIRDARR—EMX - B
ARIGRFR A SBAEET o N - EMERT SRR
BT B ENURD RERNNRARE
BERBEMENXHEEERN - AIBLZFE
FTHERFX °

MEERAEERBWER  EREAER
A iH A BRI T Rl BB RE R A B

X RS AER - WEERAKEZESR
A ¥ 1) 6 (] 10 ) 3F BB B 1R 1R X AR E AR IS O {E
] 428 - AT - HEHRERE D EHAE
B YREEBEEEABRRER  AEE
HHEVHRE M R - DR SR EE N E
% - —ARTERAA

ATEE AN - RITE BB HE R
& - RERAFRINRO #EE -

185



186

AustAsia Group Ltd.
REREERLT

Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 S R B

31 December 2023
2023%F12A31H

2.4

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group participates in the national pension schemes as
defined by the laws of the countries in which it operates. In
particular, the employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute
certain percentages of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. Companies of the Group located in
Singapore make contributions to the Central Provident
Fund scheme in Singapore.

The contributions are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme,
and contributions paid to the defined contribution pension
scheme for an employee are not available to reduce the
Group’s future obligations to such defined contribution
pension plans even if the employee leaves.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which
is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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2.4

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating
to an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction
is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign
currency translation reserve, except to the extent that the
differences are attributable to non-controlling interests. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount in
the reserve relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of
contracts with renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include
extension and termination options. The Group applies
judgement in evaluating whether or not to exercise the
option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers
all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for
it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the
commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term
if there is a significant event or change in circumstances
that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or
not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate the lease
(e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or
significant customisation to the leased asset).

The Group includes the renewal period as part of the
lease term for leases of farmland due to the significance
of these assets to its operations. These leases have a
short non-cancellable period (i.e., three to five years) and
there will be a significant negative effect on production if a
replacement is not readily available.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR
is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to
borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to
the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have
to pay”, which requires estimation when no observable
rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not
enter into financing transactions) or when it needs to be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for
example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional
currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable
inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is
required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as
the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Estimation of fair value of dairy cows and beef cattle

The Group’s dairy cows and beef cattle are measured
at fair value less costs to sell. The fair value of dairy
cows and beef cattle is determined based on either the
market-determined prices as at the end of each reporting
period adjusted with reference to the species, age,
growing condition, cost incurred and expected yield of
the milk to reflect differences in characteristics and/or
stages of growth of dairy cows; or the present value of
expected net cash flows from the dairy cows and beef
cattle discounted at a current market-determined rate,
when market-determined prices are unavailable. Any
changes in the estimates may affect the fair value of the
dairy cows and beef cattle significantly. The independent
qualified professional valuer and management review the
assumptions and estimates periodically to identify any
significant change in fair value of dairy cows and beef
cattle. Further details are given in note 21 to the financial
statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets (including the
right-of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period.
Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for impairment
annually and at other times when such an indicator exists.
Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation
of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Fair value of unlisted equity investment

The unlisted equity investment has been valued based on a
market-based valuation technique as detailed in note 38 to
the financial statements. The valuation requires the Group
to determine the comparable public companies (peers)
and select the enterprise value/sales (“EV/S”) multiple. In
addition, the Group makes estimates about the discount
for illiquidity and size differences. The Group classifies the
fair value of the investment as Level 3. The fair value of the
unlisted equity investment at 31 December 2023 was nil
(81 December 2022: RMB8,511,000). Further details are
included in note 14 to the financial statements.

Impairment of long-term receivable

The impairment of long-term receivable was estimated
based on the individual assessment performed by the
Group considering the significantly increased credit risk.
The provision for impairment loss on long-term receivable
amounted to RMB123,883,000 as at 31 December 2023
(81 December 2022: RMB34,127,000). Further details are
included in note 19 to the financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and
has three reportable operating segments as follows: (1)
raw milk business for the production and sales of raw milk;
(2) beef cattle business for raising and sales of beef cattle;
and (3) ancillary business for sales of milk products, feed
products and others.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/
loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is
measured consistently with the Group’s profit before tax
except that other income and expenses, non-lease-related
finance costs from the Group’s financial instruments as well
as head office or corporate administrative expenses are
excluded from such measurement.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third
parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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INFORMATION 4.

REsIER (FH)

HZE2023F12A31BIEFE

Raw milk Beef cattle Ancillary Total
R e Hit &%t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT ARBTR ARBTR
Segment revenue (Note 5) DEWNA (B1:E5)
Sales to external customers HETINEEP 3,341,602 361,992 220,766 3,924,360
Intersegment sales DEBMEEE 127,810 - 257,026 384,836
3,469,412 361,992 477,792 4,309,196
Elimination of intersegment HEH HAEHEE
sales (384,836)
Revenue ON 3,924,360
Segment results PEEE (47,216) (10,548) 7,890 (49,874)
Finance costs (other than BEXA (TREHRE
interest on lease liabilities) BENFE) (177,861) (6,531) (4,241) (188,633)
Unallocated impairment of RO BLA) R AAER
long-term receivable FIERE (89,756)
Unallocated corporate and ROBEHDER
administrative expenses THAX (225,553)
Unallocated other income R BLA)E AU A
and expenses MY 83,865
(Loss)/Profit before tax BAT (&8, FE (469,951)
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4.

OPERATING SEGMENT

(continued)

INFORMATION 4.

Year ended 31 December 2022

RETIER (F)

HZE2022F 12 A31BIEFE

Raw milk Beef cattle Ancillary Total
R e Hit Gl
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREF T AREF T ARETF T
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(k&%) (gE51) (E5) (E5)
Segment revenue (Note 5) DEWNA (B1:#5)
Sales to external customers HE TIMNBER 3,314,465 376,434 112,016 3,802,915
Intersegment sales DEBEHE 61,133 - = 61,133
3,375,598 376,434 112,016 3,864,048
Elimination of intersegment HH D HBEHE
sales (61,133)
Revenue WA 3,802,915
Segment results PEEE 620,777 17,707 11,217 649,701
Finance costs (other than BMEXKA (TEEHRE
interest on lease liabilities) BENFE) (141,447) (6,138) (4) (147,589)
Unallocated corporate and RKOBHBER
administrative expenses TR (334,442)
Unallocated other income ROBAIEABUA
and expenses MAX 4,254
Profit before tax 7t A 7 171,924

The chief operating decision maker makes decisions

according to operating results of each segment. No
analysis of segment assets and segment liabilities is
presented as the chief operating decision maker does
not regularly review such information for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Therefore, only segment revenue and segment results are

presented.

TEREARRERBEZ DML EREET
RE - AR EERLERRELRBERDE
MBEMF LI EREREULRES  BARE
JIBDEEEMD R AENDN - Eitt - &
2573 BUWAT D #BEAE o



OPERATING SEGMENT

(continued)

Other segment information

Year ended 31 December 2023
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INFORMATION 4.

REsIER (FH)

31 December 2023

2023F12H31H

HZE2023F12A31BILFE

Raw milk Beef cattle Ancillary Total
=8 L] SES Hth &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT ARET T ARET T
Amounts included in the FFADMEESE
measure of segment results: A& ¢
Gains arising on initial FEWERIR D S
recognition of raw milk at BERHEEXR
fair value less costs to sell 2 R R AL
at the point of harvest EErias 694,044 - - 694,044
Losses arising from changes  RERA4G QA AEE
in fair value less costs to WAHEK A EE)
sell of beef cattle HEE - (3,624) - (3,624)
Losses arising from changes KRB EfEWEE
in fair value less costs to DABERIEE
sell of other biological AN BB &R
assets (665,805) (2,078) - (667,883)
Depreciation and amortisation B BzENBREITE
charged to profit or loss Y& Eic] 159,177 24,726 7,845 191,748
Interest on lease liabilities HESERNS 75,455 4,846 14 80,315
Selling and distribution HERDHEMAX
expenses - - 2,894 2,894
Impairment loss of trade FEW R IB RV E 1R
receivables, net R - - 7,244 7,244
Capital expenditure B 1,670,470 506,858 73,463 2,250,791
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31 December 2023
2023%F12A31H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. reEoEER (&)
(continued)

HibpEER (1)
HZE2022F12A31HILFE

Other segment information (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2022

Raw milk Beef cattle Ancillary Total
R SES Hith a5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKETFTT ARKETFTT AREEFTT ARBEFTT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(gE5)) (&E5) (gE5)) (g&E5)
Amounts included in the FFADHEEE
measure of segment results:  HE % ¢
Gains arising on initial TERERFIRAAER
recognition of raw milk at S AR A
fair value less costs to sell wRREESE
at the point of harvest Eole 843,216 = = 843,216
Gains arising from changes REAFAAEE
in fair value less costs to SHE AR E)
sell of beef cattle ol & - 25,648 - 25,648
Losses arising from changes KRB EMAWEE
in fair value less costs to NABERIEE
sell of other biological ERAE B R EE
assets (155,043) (8,140) - (158,183)
Depreciation and amortisation E1Bz5INBEITE
charged to profit or loss &30 147,504 21,238 1,047 169,789
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEME 67,396 4,801 11 72,208
Selling and distribution HERDHEAE
expenses - - 2,899 2,899
Capital expenditure BEARRY 1,913,962 442,206 103,903 2,460,071
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31 December 2023
202312 A31H

REsIER (FH)

Geographical information EFER
(a)  Revenue from external customers (a)  KEIEEFHIHLA
2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARBT T
(Restated)
(&%)
Mainland China R A A 3,924,360 3,802,915

The revenue information above is based on the
locations of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

LW AB R TIREF R E S

(b) FRBEE

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

20234 20224

12A31H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AR®ET T

(Restated)

(g=:75)

Mainland China REEap:i 8,434,586 8,051,676

The non-current asset information above is based
on the locations of the assets and excludes financial
instruments and deferred tax assets.

BSERBEEEMREEMEM
gy TeEEeERIARRERES
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2023F12A31H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about major customers

The revenue from each individual major customer
accounting for over 10% of the Group's revenue during the

year is as follows:

RETIER (F)

FREEEFHNER

FA - BAEREBRRAI0% A ENEEE

BEEBERAT

2023 2022
2023 % 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBET T
(Restated)
(& E5)
Customer A EFPA 782,907 866,770
Customer B ®FB 1,187,858 766,841
N/A
Customer C =FC TiEH 400,516
1,970,765 2,034,127
5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS WA - HA R W=
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WABHTIAT -

2023 2022
2023 & 2022%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBFIT
(Restated)
(&&5)

Revenue from contracts with customers BEEEHWA
Sales of raw milk BN SHE 3,341,602 3,314,465
Sales of beef cattle A4 HE 361,992 376,434
Sales of ancillary HMiEE 220,766 112,016
3,924,360 3,802,915

Timing of revenue recognition U A T RR s
At a point in time TR EFE 3,924,360 3,802,915
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(continued)

Performance obligations

The Group sells raw milk to manufacturers of dairy
products, beef cattle to food processing companies, milk
products to cafes and other end customers and feed
products to farms. For sales of raw milk, beef cattle, milk
products and feed products to its customers, revenue
is recognised when control of the goods has been
transferred, being at the point the customer received the
goods and was satisfied with the quality. Payment of the
transaction price is determined based on market price.
The credit term is normally 30 days from the invoice date
for raw milk customers and feed product customers, it
is normally 30 to 45 days from the invoice date for milk
products customers, and no credit is provided for beef
cattle customers.

B 75 ¥R R B

31 December 2023
202312 A31H

WA - B AR W ()

BOEE
AEERIBRWETHERND - AR
MIATREAS - FMEE R AT
P RE IR U R A E @R - pEE
BEEHERMD  AE - URGRART
T AR R RSB B (E K
HERLREEENEHNY) BE - XP %
S TR TS AR T o OB ) R AT
BENEEH—RAREESH%I0X A
REFMISEN— R AR EAE30E45
X - WRERFESREEE -

2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBET T
(Restated)
C=l)
Other income and gains HEaA Rk

Government grants BT BN 27,969 19,610

Gains on modification of leases EREE W= 23,103
Insurance claims RERREE 13,416 10,474
Technical service fee AR TS & 18,173 8,230
Interest income FEUA 4,014 3,298
Scrap sales &g & 595 696
Others HAth 7,421 7,973
Total &t 94,691 50,281
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(continued)

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation

In most of the sales contracts, the amount of consideration
that the Group has a right to invoice corresponds directly
with the value to the customer of each incremental good
that the Group transfers to the customer. As permitted by
IFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied
performance obligations is not disclosed.

WA - B AR W ()

TRENBGBEBNECTETNRZER

EXRZENHEANT  AEEERHAEER
MHESREAREBIREFNSIZER
mETFNEEERYE - RIE(BERMT
WEEDFISWAATE  DEEZFR
ERNBEHNEER TR ZERT THE -

6. OTHER EXPENSES Hipx

2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
(Restated)
(&E7)
Foreign exchange losses, net (Note 7) SNEE B5 18 588 (M52 7) 3,006 23,717

Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEYE - BERRENERE
equipment 6,521 6,284
Loss on modification of leases BN E B - 12,530
Others Hifp 1,299 3,496
Total A&t 10,826 46,027
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31 December 2023

The Group’s (loss)/profit before tax is arrived at after

Bt A R 7

2023F12 A31H

AEENTA (BR),/ FIETEIRIAT R

charging: G
2023 2022
2023 F 2022%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
it ARET T AREET T
(Restated)
(&&E5)
Costs of sales of raw milk JREL 80 85 & B 3,341,602 3,314,465
Costs of sales of beef cattle A4 B $EE AR 361,992 376,434
Costs of sales of ancillary Hh S A AR 202,724 97,889
Cost of sales HEKAR 3,906,318 3,788,788
Depreciation of property, plant and Vs - B RERETE
equipment 15 288,531 232,452
Less: Capitalised in biological assets & : B4t A EE 124,105 86,979
Depreciation charged to profit or loss ~ BIEEINBRAITE 164,426 145,473
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 16 103,161 100,176
Less: Capitalised in biological assets &l : EXR(LEMEE 77,548 78,268
Depreciation charged to profit or loss ~ BEBEINBRAIFTE 25,613 21,908
Impairment of long-term receivable REAfE WS IERE 19 89,756 =
Impairment of trade receivables FEUN R IE RV E 22 7,244 -
Impairment losses on financial assets &Rt EEREEE 97,000 =
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESH 17 1,709 2,408
Lease payments not included in the Rt AHEBETEN
measurement of lease liabilities BERR 16 25,850 28,256
Auditors’ remuneration ZE TR A 5,084 9,659
Losses arising from changes in REHMEMEELR
fair value less costs to sell of EEREERNEBH
other biological assets =g 21 667,883 158,183
Employee benefit expenses (including EE®FIFEY: (BEES
directors and chief executive’s ME=TBRABHBH)
remuneration):
Wages and salaries TERH® 318,423 275,690
Pension scheme contributions RIKE T B 61,367 50,303
Share-based payments expenses VAR A7 B B 9 - 3R B =2 6,501 90,506
386,291 416,499
Foreign exchange differences, net HNEE 2= 2558 6 3,006 23,717
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31 December 2023
2023%F12A31H

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. BE A

An analysis of finance costs is as follows: RER AT :
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREET T
(Restated)
(&8 &E51))
Interest on bank loans SRITERF B 188,798 139,397
Interest on shareholder’s loans R E K F B - 10,480
Interest on lease liabilities HEAERE 80,315 72,208
Interest on contract liabilities EHaEF 8 2,164 4,133
271,277 226,218
Less: Interest expense capitalised W BRI B (2,329) (6,421)
268,948 219,797

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 9. EERBSTHRAEHMH
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, BEEMHRA - BECREEH ) E383(1)
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (a) ~ (b) * (c)R(NHIEA KR ARIRHE2EE (F
(b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance BEEFZER) BENAFEESERE&S
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information TBRABHHFMAOT

about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2023 2022
2023 % 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
(Restated)
(&E5)
Fees we 1,099 67
Other emoluments: HEame -
Remuneration, salaries, allowances and - e FRR
benefits in kind and pension scheme EWRAALRKE
contributions B 18,776 16,844
Performance-related bonus Eh g 2,839 3,461
Share-based payment expenses VARG 2 iR 6 3 2 4,274 85,254

25,889 105,559
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (continued)

During the year, certain directors were granted share
options in respect of their services to the Group under the
share option scheme of the Company, further details of
which are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.
The fair value of such options, which has been recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the
vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant
and the amount included in the financial statements for the
current year is included in the above directors’ and chief
executive’'s remuneration disclosures.

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive

B 75 ¥R R B

31 December 2023
202312 A31H

EERRSITHRAEHM (&)

RAFE  REARBNERETS - 5T
EERANAERNRGERBIE £
FEBHN M BRMKRMTLI0 - ZEHEAREZ
AREBEDRELEMEE  YERFED
EHGABEERABR  EXBEERERTR
ANBZHWRBEE RREAFERBHRRTH

(a) BIFBITES
MREFEN FBELIFRTEFHH

directors during the year were as follows: ca NN
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBETTT
(Restated)
(&&E5)
Chang Pan, Peter SR 270 22
Sun, Patrick FEE 293 23
Li Shengli ZEF 270 22
833 67

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the
year.

RAFE  BERNTELIFNTE
FMHMME
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31 December 2023
2023%F 12 A31H

9.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9.

REMUNERATION (continued)

(b)

EERBETHRASHMN (K

Executive directors and the chief executive (b) HITEERESTHRAES
2023 20234
Remuneration,
salaries,
allowances Performance-  Share-based Pension
and benefits related payment scheme Total
Fees in kind bonus expenses contributions remuneration
24 I i M7 A E R B
e EZERENEF ByRe WEFREX HE 55 CHE L
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR%ETR ARETR ARETR ARETR AR®TR
Executive directors: RWOES:
Tan Yong Nang R&E - 5,744 - 1,615 59 7,418
Edgar Dowse Collins Edgar Dowse Collins - 6,064 1,065 1,713 - 8,842
YANG Ku BE - 3,864 1,774 685 27 6,350
Gao Lina* BEH - 1,858 - 261 - 2,119
Non-executive director;  FEHITEE :
Hirata Toshiyuki FHR&T - - - - - -
Gao Lina* BER 131 1,160 - - - 1,291
Gabriella Santosa™ Gabriella Santosa™ 135 - - - - 135
266 18,690 2,839 4,274 86 26,155

Gao Lina was re-appointed as a non-executive

director and was no longer an executive director
since 7 June 2023.

> Gabriella Santosa was appointed as non-
executive director on 7 June 2023.

* S EHE2023F6 A7THMEE
FEZAAIFEHNTES M

BREENTES -

o Gabriella Santosal? 20234
6ATEEZTAIEHNITES -
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 9. EERESTHAESHMH (&)
REMUNERATION (continued)
Executive directors and the chief executive (b) HITEERESTHRAE (&)
(continued)
2022 20224F
Remuneration,
salaries,
allowances  Performance-  Share-based Pension
and benefits related payment scheme Total
Fees in kind bonus expenses  contributions  remuneration
o AR RERE Bifke
e RERENEN Bafe  WARAX SRR CHEL
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  ARETR ARBTRT  ARETR  ARET:
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(mE5) (1B E5) (g=51) (mE5) (m&5) (B E5)
Executive directors: B8R
Tan Yong Nang R = 5,354 = 38,722 50 44,126
Edgar Dowse Collins Edgar Dowse Collins - 4,091 1,123 32,891 - 38,105
YANG Ku e - 2,749 2,338 13,264 - 18,351
Gao Lina BEM - 4,600 - 377 = 4977
Non-executive director: ~ FFHTES :
Hirata Toshiyuki FHRET - - - - - =
- 16,794 3,461 85,254 50 105,559

Saved for Mr Hirata Toshiyuki who has waived
his rights to receive Directors fee, there was
no arrangement under which a director or the
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year.

BRFRETEEAEERBURMES
RAFE  BERES
HEHTHABRBERMLIRESR
Rl B PR AERIH I

wEHREFISN -
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10.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
3 directors (2022: 4), whose emoluments are included in
the disclosure above. Details of the emoluments of the
remaining 2 (2022: 1) individual for the year are as follows:

10.

TEREHHES

RFEFRNEEERFHNEERESRES
(2022%F : 4%) - AMl@BEF Ll ES -
RERBEFIR2E (20224F  18) BAAK
&7 T

2023 2022

2023 F 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARBT T

(Restated)

(&E5))

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind #Fre R REYET 6,090 3,849
Performance-related bonus E e 1,206 1,700
Share-based payments expenses AR BER &SR 332 168
7,628 5717

The number of non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

HFHERATHRENIFEERIFRRITRA
BENREHHMESHAZNT

Number of employees

EEAH
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB3,000,001 to RMB4,000,000 AR #3,000,00170E AR 4,000,0007T 1 =
RMB4,000,001 to RMB5,000,000 AFR#4,000,00170E AR5 000,0007T 1 =
RMB5,000,001 to RMB6,000,000 AR#5,000,001 T2 AR¥6,000,0007T - 1
2 1

During the year, share options were granted to the highest
paid employees in respect of their services to the Group,
further details of which are included in note 30 to the
financial statements. The fair value of such options, which
has been recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at
the date of grant and the amount included in the financial
statements for each reporting period is included in the
above disclosures.

RER HEFHHEERESAREERHH
RIS R BB A HE - HAr BN M MR M i
30 - ZEBBRENAABEINKE RS
EE YERBEBHAERSEGRARER
EXFBEEEERSREMOYBERRTNE
7o
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202312 A31H

INCOME TAX 11. FisH
2023 2022
2023F 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AR¥T AREET T
(Restated)
(E5)

Current income tax BVERFTIS

Charge for the year F Mk 5,231 1,096
Under provision in prior years TEBRETR 51 14
Withholding tax AR (a) 13,558 12,735
Total tax charge for the year FRIERE 18,840 13,845

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to (loss)/
profit before tax using the statutory rates to the tax
expenses per the consolidated statement of profit or loss at

the effective tax rate is as follows:

EREER RS EARBAT (B1R),/ FE
MIERX BRBGSBERRARNETE
RBIRFSOETTRERRNT

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE ARMF T ARBEFTT
(Restated)
(gE7)
(Loss)/profit before tax Bian (&18)/FE (469,951) 171,924
Tax at the statutory rates to profits BEAEREE QL EMTE
in countries where the company BN 0P Ve s
operates (b) (110,189) 46,628
Effect of tax exemptions granted to BTREBRENKAREH
agricultural entities wE (c) 88,575 (81,031)
Tax losses not recognised RERNTIIEEE 1,198 400
Non-deductible expenses TEHBRMER 26,047 35,189
Tax losses utilised from previous AT ER(E A MR IE 8518
periods (400) (90)
Under provision of taxation in prior EERERBTE
periods 51 14
Withholding tax A (a) 13,558 12,735
18,840 13,845
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2023%F12A31H

11.

INCOME TAX (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Withholding tax mainly represents the withholding
enterprise income tax when the subsidiaries in
Mainland China paid the royalty fees to the Company
and the withholding enterprise income tax rate is 10%
during the year (2022: 10%).

The tax charge represents income tax in Mainland
China and Singapore, which is calculated at the
prevailing tax rate on the taxable income of the
subsidiaries established in these countries and regions.
The statutory tax rates are as follows:

11.

Frig®i ()

Hizt -

(a)

FEHOHE £ BAEMTE A B B A [ A
DRV R BRI TEINR M
BH - ARFRNBHCEMSHRE
B10% (20224F : 10%) °

BB o P R 3 A0 5 2 2 0
8% - REHARBREZARAE
S PO 2 I SR BUR A O (T B
HE o REBEMT

2023 2022

2023 F 2022

Singapore TN 17% 17%
Mainland China A A 25% 25%

The PRC subsidiaries are subject to the law of the
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) at 25%
during the year (2022: 25%). Taxation arising in other
jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the
relevant jurisdictions. According to the prevailing tax
rules and regulation of the EIT Law, certain subsidiaries
of the Group in the PRC are exempted from enterprise
income tax for taxable profit engaging in the operation
of agricultural business in the PRC for each reporting
period.

RER - FEKEARBETHBEE
EFRETE) R 25% T R (2022
F:25%)  c REMAEEBEREEDN
MARIERE R EEEREOBRITHER
B RIBCREMEHE)RITHUR
A RSER - AEBRFEBHHBA
AIREMEMEFTEENCE REER
EENERMFBEBEEREH -
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DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company to
its ordinary shareholders for the year ended 31 December
2023 (2022: Nil).

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share
amount is based on the (loss)/profit for the year attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the parent, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 700,412,612 (2022:
622,234,810) in issue during the year, as adjusted to reflect
the rights issue for the year.

The calculation of the diluted (loss)/earnings per share
amount is based on the profit for the year attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the parent. The weighted
average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation
is the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year,
as used in the basic (loss)/earnings per share calculation,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the
deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

The calculations of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per
share are based on:

B 75 ¥R R B

31 December 2023
202312 A31H

12. KA
B ZE2023F12A31HILFE - KA AW E
mEEBERE L ME RS (20224 ¢
) o

13. BARAREEREZEEAELGER

(&B]), BF

FREA (BR),/ BNENGARERRE
sREAFARSE (BR) FIBRRFRET
#700,412,612% (20224 : 622,234,810
B BB AEFBETHE - X ARK
FROHRETTAE -

BREE (BR)/ BINSEENEGRRLRE
s E ARGEANBETHE - 58
PrARZERRINETFHRT ARG ESRE
A(ER)/ BRNENFAERTEBRE
B IRBREARETEIBERAAEEEE
BRERAT BRI EERT 2 ERRNEF
HE

REARKEE (B18),/ BARAT SR

=

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFTT ARBT T
(Restated)
(g &%)
Earnings &7
(Loss)/profit attributable to ordinary equity ARESRER (BEB), &F)
holders of the parent used in the basic ZE AT EBRERSE AR
(loss)/earnings per share calculation 16 (&518),/ F8 (488,791) 158,079
Effect of dilution: BanUE -
Share-based payments LARR AR A 20 851 3R = (980)
(488,791) 157,099
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13.

14.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 13. B ARZEREZEAAEGSR
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE (E58), BF (#)
PARENT (continued)

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Shares AR 15
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AR EFREAR (BE),/
in issue during the year used in the basic BFNNFRNDBITERER
(loss)/earnings per share calculation IHEFHE 700,412,612 622,234,810
Effect of dilution — weighted average BERMUE — LER
number of ordinary shares: N8
Share-based payments LARR A A 20 85 3K - 1,270,926

700,412,612 623,505,736

EQUITY INVESTMENT DESIGNATED AT FAIR 14. EEAUAAREBESEBHEZFHA

VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Htt 2R RERE
INCOME
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBFT
(Restated)
(fe&7))
Equity investment designated at fair value EEARUAABEFEBEEEH
through other comprehensive income SFARME2EKENRERE
Unlisted equity investment, NARBEEMIE ETRE
at fair value ®E
Food Union AustAsia Holdings Food Union AustAsia
Pte. Ltd. Holdings Pte. Ltd. - 8,511
The above equity investment was irrevocably designated HAREBEHHINEFEEATE » W it
at fair value through other comprehensive income as the A% HEFS B T Al BUSE IS E A A A R BEET

Group has no significant influence on the investee. s A& ARt EUES -
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31 December 2023
2023912 A31H

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% BERRE
Buildings  Machinery Office
and site and Motor furniture Construction
facilities equipment vehicles and fixtures in progress Total
BFR WARAR
Gige EHRRE KH=H EEEE EEIR &t
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
AR%TRE AR¥Tr ARETR AR%TR AR%TR AR¥TR
31 December 2023 2023F12A31H
At 1 January 2023 (restated) 20231 A1H
(B=731)
Cost (restated) A (&7 1,983,446 1,933,952 32,409 43,213 524,143 4,517,163
Accumulated depreciation ZHMELRE
and impairment (restated) (s E75) (442,371)  (869,556) (7,928) (22,108) - (1,341,963)
Net carrying amount (restated) ~ BREE(E (£ EFI) 1,541,075 1,064,396 24,481 21,105 524,143 3,175,200
At 1 January 2023, net of ®2023F1A1A
accumulated depreciation EMBREGIER
and impairment (restated) AE (EET) 1,541,075 1,064,396 24,481 21,105 524,143 3,175,200
Additions NE 36,933 202,426 4,682 20,776 226,404 491,221
Disposal HE (587) (9,272) (87) (464) (4,019)  (14,429)
Depreciation for the year FAME (96,124)  (179,434) (3,114) (9,859) - (288,531)
Transfer B 452,740 274,135 = 1,289 (730,543) (2,379)
At 31 December 2023, netof ~ #2023F 1278318 -
accumulated depreciation BB EINE
and impairment RRE 1,934,037 1,352,251 25,962 32,847 15,985 3,361,082
At 31 December 2023 202312 4311
Cost AR 2,472,193 2,384,935 36,228 62,847 15,985 4,972,188
Accumulated depreciation ZEELRE
and impairment (538,156) (1,032,684) (10,266) (30,000) - (1,611,106)
Net carrying amount FEFE 1,934,037 1,352,251 25,962 32,847 15,985 3,361,082
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31 December 2023
2023%F12A31H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 15. Y% - BENRRE (&)
Buildings ~ Machinery Office
and site and Motor furniture  Construction
facilities  equipment vehicles  and fixtures  in progress Total
BFR MRRER
SR AR e EEEE TEEIR CH
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
31 December 2022 2022128311
At 1 January 2022 (restated) R2022%1A18
(E=31)
Cost (restated) AR (S E5)) 1,883,915 1,781,761 25,589 37,923 35,785 3,764,973
Accumulated depreciation ZHTERRE
and impairment (restated) (BE7) (368,756) (714,999) (7,476) (19,169) - (1,110,400)

Net carrying amount (restated)  BREF(E (4£&5]) 1,515,159 1,066,762 18,113 18,754 35,785 2,654,573
At 1 January 2022, net of R2022F1 A18

accumulated depreciation EHNBREFNER

and impairment (restated) RE (RE7]) 1,515,159 1,066,762 18,113 18,754 35,785 2,654,573
Additions (restated) RE (KE7) 17,830 105,556 9,019 6,222 625,524 764,151
Disposal (restated) HE (RE5) (2,208) (8,370) (233) (261) = (11,072)
Depreciation for the year FAME (KE7))

(restated) (60,682)  (165,719) (2,418) (3,633) - (232,452)
Transfer (restated) B (K E5)) 70,976 66,167 = 23 (137,166) =
At 31 December 2022, netof 202212318 »

accumulated depreciation EHNBREFNER

and impairment (restated) RE (FE7]) 1,541,075 1,064,396 24,481 21,105 524,143 3,175,200
At 31 December 2022 ®2022F12A31H

Cost (restated) R (B E5]) 1,983,446 1,933,952 32,409 43,213 524,143 4,517,163

Accumulated depreciation ZHTERRE

and impairment (restated) (mE5) (442,371)  (869,556) (7,928) (22,108) - (1,341,963)
Net carrying amount (restated)  BRELFE(E (£55]) 1,541,075 1,064,396 24,481 21,105 524,143 3,175,200

#2023F12A31H - AR#659,456,000
70 (2022912 A31H : AK# 346,383,000
T MEEARECERARITEARNEER
TERNER  FEB2BUEHREM T
27 °

As at 31 December 2023, the aggregate carrying amount
of RMB659,456,000 (31 December 2022: RMB346,383,000)
was pledged to bank as security for the Group’'s bank
borrowings, as further detailed in note 27 to the financial
statements.
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LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of
leasehold land, buildings and site facilities used in its
operations. Leases of land generally have lease terms
between 3 and 40 years. Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and contain different payment terms
and conditions. Leases of buildings and other site facilities
generally have lease terms between 2 and 5 years. Other
equipment generally has lease terms of 12 months or less
and/or is individually of low value. Generally, the Group is
restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets
outside the Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use
assets and the movements during the year are as
follows:

16.

B 75 ¥R R B

31 December 2023
202312 A31H

HE
REBEREEA

AEERELETFERANSEHRET N 2
FRSWRBEEHAEHESL - Tihe7E
ERTAAIEA0FNMEEY - HEHRER
BRI ELE R - B S &Y S 6K K 16k
fFeBFREMBHRENEEBREAB2
E5FNHEEN HMRFBBTEE12(EH
FEENEERK KA EERE - —&
ME @ ARETEAARNEELINEZEMEHE
HEEE -

(a) (EABRE

WP SR B (IR A A B A (A
EBIERMT :

Leasehold Buildings and

land site facilities Total
HELH BFRBHRIE a5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®T AR® T
As at 31 December 2021  2021F12A31H X
and 1 January 2022 2022%1A1H

(restated) (ggE5) 1,027,580 188 1,027,768
Additions (restated) NE (KET) 534,516 790 535,306
Revision of lease rents HEEs] (KET)

(restated) 102,406 - 102,406
Revision of lease terms MAERERT (L EF)

(restated) (208,993) - (208,993)
Charge for the year FAHK (KE7)

(restated) (99,823) (853) (100,176)
As at 31 December 2022 72022912 H318 &

and 1 January 2023 2023F1A1H

(restated) (& &E5)) 1,355,686 625 1,356,311
Additions VIN=E 55,232 - 55,232
Revision of lease terms THEMEET 210,226 - 210,226
Charge for the year FAMR (102,766) (395) (103,161)
As at 31 December 2023 2023412 318 1,518,378 230 1,518,608
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31 December 2023
2023%F12A31H

16. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

(b)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

16. FHE (&)

AEBEEREAA (H)
(a) RAEEE (&)

As at 31 December 2023, the aggregate carrying
amount of RMB13,134,000 (31 December 2022:
RMB13,410,000) was pledged to bank as security
for the Group’s bank borrowings, as further detailed

in note 27 to the financial statements.

Lease liabilities

(b)

The carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the

MH2023F 12 A31H

AR

13,134,0007T (2022412 4318 :
AR#13,410,0007T) WBREARME L.
BIGRITIE R AR EIRITHE A E
R HEB2HMBRRME2T7

HEERE

RENEEEBENEREEMNZSIEN

movements during the year are as follows: U
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBETTT
(Restated)
(&E5)
Carrying amount at the beginning of ~ E¥HEREE
the year 1,330,524 963,731
New leases e 55,232 535,306
Revision of lease rents itk ) - 102,580
Revision of lease terms FAEAEET 187,123 (196,637)
Accretion of interest recognised F AR A F S IE hN
during the year 80,315 72,208
Payments BN (147,967) (146,664)
Carrying amount at the end of FEARMREE
the year 1,505,227 1,330,524
Analysed into: DT
Current portion mENEs 70,513 75,707
Non-current portion EmBIE D 1,434,714 1,254,817

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed

in note 39 to the financial statements.

HEBBNRE A DRI B REKM

AE39HFE
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31 December 2023

2023F12 A31H

16. LEASES (continued) 16. HE (&)
The Group as a lessee (continued) AEBERABEA ()
(c)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation (c) RiBz VR ETEE G 2 80
to leases are as follows: v
2023 2022
2023 %F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBETTT
(Restated)
(gE:5)
Interest on lease liabilities HEAENE 80,315 72,208
Depreciation charge of EREEERTERX
right-of-use assets 25,613 21,908
Expense relating to short-term REIE SRR
leases 25,850 28,256
Total amount recognised in RIER R B
profit or loss 131,778 122,372
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31 December 2023
2023%F12A31H

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. EBEEE
Software
B4
RMB’000
AR®TR
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 R20218F12 431 H &20229F1 A1H
Cost (restated) R (FEEF) 17,383
Accumulated amortisation (restated) 2t (KEB) (12,413)
Net carrying amount at 1 January 2022, M2022F 1 A1 AKREFE -
net of accumulated amortisation (restated) Bk Ret s (K E5)) 4,970
Additions (restated) RNE (KEET) 739
Amortisation provided during the year (restated) FAFHREE (KE7)) (2,408)
At 31 December 2022 (restated) R2022%F 12 A31H (&L E5) 3,301
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 R2022% 12 A31H k202341 A1H
Cost (restated) BAS (4EE5)) 18,122
Accumulated amortisation (restated) REEE (KE) (14,821)
Net carrying amount at 1 January 2023, M2023F1 A1 AREFE
net of accumulated amortisation (restated) Bk RET#EE (KE5)) 3,301
Additions = 1,132
Transfer in from construction in progress EREERTIR 2,379
Amortisation provided during the year FANETIRE (1,709)
At 31 December 2023 2023412 A31H 5,103
At 31 December 2023 R2023F 12 A31H
Cost DN 20,258
Accumulated amortisation RETEEH (15,155)
Net carrying amount BRI FE 5,103
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31 December 2023
202312 A31H

18. HMRHPEE

31 December

31 December

12A31H 12H31H
2023 2022
2023 % 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
(Restated)
(&E7)
Prepayments for property, plant and Y% - BB R ETEN A
equipment 8,779 66,576

19. LONG-TERM RECEIVABLE

19. RHEEWRIE

31 December

31 December

12H31H 12H31H
2023 2022
2023 % 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBT T
(Restated)
(f&E7))
Amounts due from JEE S MUY Food Union
Food Union AustAsia AustAsia Holdings Pte. Ltd.
Holdings Pte. Ltd., non-trade KIE 123,883 119,119
Impairment BIE (123,883) (34,127)
- 84,992

The balance of long-term receivable was the shareholder’s
loans to Food Union AustAsia Holdings Pte. Ltd., with
a floating interest rate of 1-year USD LIBOR plus 0.3%
per annum. Management classifies it as a non-current
receivable based on the repayment plan agreed by the
parties. The long-term receivable is repayable beyond
twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group assessed that the
credit risk had been significantly increased and the
Group accumulated impairment allowance amounting to
RMB123,883,000 for the long-term receivable.

FHIEWREL# AR EMFood Union
AustAsia Holdings Pte. Ltd. f2HEE R
1 EBE T B IRITRI 2/ S £)F0.3%H)
FENFAEGE - ERERESFHENE
FETEIBEBEAEREEKFIE - WEB
AR 12(E B R EE -

R2023F12A31H @ A&EEFTHRAEEE
B E AR - F it A& B /Y K HIfE R
THH RETRVERT R A R #123,883,000 7T
1o
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31 December 2023
2023%F12A31H

20. INVENTORIES

20. ®E

31 December

31 December

128318 12H831H

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ET T AREETTT

(Restated)

(E5)

Raw materials R 1,234,011 1,248,850
Low-value consumables REEFER 42,143 44,610
Finished goods P én 8 35,607 14,127
1,311,761 1,307,587
Provision for inventories FERE (79) (3,441)
1,311,682 1,304,146

As at 31 December 20283, the carrying amount of
RMB1,045,701,000 (31 December 2022: RMB568,134,000)
was pledged as security for the Group’s bank borrowings,
as further detailed in note 27 to the financial statements.

21. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS
A — Nature of activities

The biological assets of the Group are mainly dairy cows
held to produce raw milk and beef cattle held for sale.

The quantity of dairy cows and beef cattle owned by the
Group at the end of each reporting period is shown below.
The Group’s milkable cows are dairy cows held to produce
raw milk. Heifers and calves are those dairy cows that
have not reached the age at which they can produce milk.
Beef cattle are raised for sale. Beef cattle mainly consist of
Holstein, Angus and Wagyu.

21.

MR2023F 128318 + AR®1,045,701,000
7t (202212 A31H : AR¥568,134,000
) MEEESETIERRNEERITERD
ER - sHIE5 RS MM SRR E27

EMEE
A-EEME

AEENEMEETIZRALEERMPME
BENPFRFERENAST -

REREHR - AEBEEENTFMALH
HEMTHAR - ARENKEFTEREER
HmARa it - BRFREFEREER
ENFRODT - AFTIRIEEMRE - A
FERRBFAHES - RRAF RN -

31 December 31 December

128318 12H31H

2023 2022

2023 20224

Milkable cows PSS 66,085 60,554
Heifers and calves B NIES 64,717 57,396
Beef cattle AL 38,433 29,615
Total &5 169,235 147,565
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A — Nature of activities (continued)

In general, the heifers are inseminated with semen when
heifers reached the age of approximately 14 months old.
After a pregnancy term of approximately nine months,
a calf is born and the dairy cow begins to produce raw
milk and the lactation period begins. A milkable cow is
typically milked for approximately 300 days before a dry
period of approximately 60 days. In general, Holstein will
be sold when they reach the age of approximately 480
days, Angus are generally sold when they reach the age of
approximately 405 days and Wagyu will be sold when they
reach the age of approximately 600 days.

When a heifer begins to produce raw milk, it is transferred
to the category of milkable cows based on the estimated
fair value on the date of transfer.

The Group is exposed to a number of risks related to its
biological assets. The Group is exposed to the following
risks:

I Regulatory and environmental risks

The Group is subject to laws and regulations in the
location in which its plantation and breeding take
place. The Group has established environmental
policies and procedures aimed at complying with
local environmental and other laws. Management
performs regular reviews to identify environmental
risks and to ensure that the systems in place are
adequate to manage these risks.

il Climate, disease and other natural risks

The Group’s biological assets are exposed to the
risk of damage from climatic changes, diseases
and other natural forces. The Group has extensive
processes in place aimed at monitoring and
mitigating those risks, including regular inspections
and disease controls and surveys and insurance.

21.

BrEE R MY EE

31 December 2023
202312 A31H

EMEE (&)
A-EBME ()

— K ERERERIIGI4EA KR - &t
FARBBRET AL - LBHEAMNESR
B ESEE  DFRBREERED - I
HFH - — BRI BEEHCORNE D
HIZ AT - @B H300 KA E TR o —ARK
i AHTIB A E F R E D 4480 KBS A
& TR —MEFREDL405 KK
HE - MAEFREDL600KFiG#H HE -

EERLHMREERMDE  REEEAN
EETAREE - SEEAKESFER -

AEBEER-RINREMEERROAR °
752 B BR DA T LB

i EERRER R

AEEABTHELEEEMEESR
X EMEERER - AEEEH
ERERREER  EEETHIR
ENEMER  BEBSETEHE
B DA R R BR 552 o g 6 T R 1) TE O B8 &
RAEEZERR

fi, RIE KR REAME R

AEENEMEERBERKEREL
RmkEMERERMELENEBER
B o AEBFTAFEN S EEZE MR
BRZERBRARE  BREHAE -
RS AERRR
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31 December 2023
2023%F12A31H

21. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)

A — Nature of activities (continued)

ili.

Risks from the fluctuations in market prices of raw
milk, beef cattle and feeds

The Group is exposed to price fluctuations in raw
milk, beef cattle and feeds. The Group has taken
actions to continuously monitor the market price
of commodities and an in-house feed mill has
commenced production to minimize the risk from
the fluctuation of feeds’ price. Moreover, the Group
has also take measures to upgrade the breeding
technology and herd management so as to improve
the quality of raw milk and beef cattle to maintain a
stable growth of sales.

B - Value of dairy cows, beef cattle and forage

plants

The fair value less costs to sell of dairy cows and beef
cattle owned by the Group at the end of each reporting
period is shown below.

21.

EMEE (&)
A-EBME ()

ili.

BRI - B RETHIE) 15 B 15 % 8
il

AEBEBERHY - AT RAHER
KEER - REECRRITEFE
EEmmmE - BREFERKRD A
MAEEMS R EREBNRREE
RIK o BN - NE B IREREE BT AR
BRERMRGHER  URSFEHED
RATHEE  RmMRFEENEBE
B -

B— it - A REARENNER

AEBBEANDTRAFREHRERRHA
REEREHERNENBERA TR

31 December 31 December

12A31H 12A31H

2023 2022

2023 F 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREFIT

(Restated)

(&==75)

Milkable cows PSS 2,380,530 2,459,901
Heifers and calves B MIES 1,160,484 990,387
Beef cattle A4 512,402 380,267
Total =X 4,053,416 3,830,555
Current BN &R 512,402 380,267
Non-current JEBNER 3,541,014 3,450,288
4,053,416 3,830,555
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31 December 2023
202312 A31H

21. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued) 21. 4£YEE (&)

B - Value of dairy cows, beef cattle and forage

plants (continued)

B—- 4 - RAREARENHER (&)

Heifers and Milkable Beef
calves cows cattle Total
B4 RES B4 SES &ast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®T T AR®T T AR®T T

Balance at 31 December 2021 2021412 H31H

(restated) K& (&) 848,171 2,197,479 313,794 3,359,444
Feeding costs and others I ® Y &L i

(restated) (58 5E751) 849,203 = 417,259 1,266,462
Transfer (restated) (g E5)) (720,925) 720,925 = =
Decrease due to sales B 86 sk 2>

(restated) (&E75) (25,097) (240,134) (376,434) (641,665)
Gains/(losses) arising from RAAABERBEE

changes in fair value less AR B U EE

costs to sell (restated) (E18) (rE75) 39,035 (218,369) 25,648 (153,686)
Balance at 31 December 2022 72022412 H31H

(restated) RIS R (K8 E7)) 990,387 2,459,901 380,267 3,830,555
Purchase EE 1,174 = 20,197 21,371
Feeding costs and others BRI AR KR H AR 994,055 = 477,554 1,471,609
Transfer B (787,273) 787,273 = =
Decrease due to sales HEE mmL (26,870) (193,736) (361,992) (582,598)
Losses arising from changes in 2R B A EEREE

fair value less costs to sell Ip&N= o) =Ei=! (10,989) (672,908) (3,624) (687,521)
Balance at 31 December 2023  72023% 12 431H

B A5 R 1,160,484 2,380,530 512,402 4,053,416
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31 December 2023
2023%F12A31H

21. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)

B - Value of dairy cows, beef cattle and forage

plants (continued)

The Group has engaged Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate
Appraisal and Advisory Limited, an independent firm of
professional valuers, to assist the Group in assessing the
fair values of the Group’s dairy cows and beef cattle. The
independent valuer and management of the Group held
meetings periodically to discuss the valuation techniques
and changes in market information to ensure that the
valuation was performed properly. The valuation techniques
used in the determination of fair values as well as the key
inputs used in the valuation models are disclosed in note

38 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s dairy cows and beef
cattle in the amount of RMB3,684,156,000 (31 December
2022: RMB3,322,513,000) were pledged to banks to secure
certain bank borrowings granted to the Group, as further

detailed in note 27 to the financial statements.

The aggregate gain or loss arising on initial recognition of
raw milk and from the changes in fair value less costs to

sell of biological assets is analysed as follows:

21.

EMEE (&)
B- i4 - R4 REARENHER (&)

REEEETHEINEXTEAT — (TS5
THEFERERNEGRAR - BEEAERFT
HAEENDFMALNARBE - Bl
EMEASEEREECHETEE  Jn
ERMMTSEENE L  UBRREENILE
BT - AREEAABENGERIMAR
HEEANPERANEZEGARERTBRE
MiFE38 R I E -

M2023F12A31H ' A5BEEAEARYE
3,684,156,0007T (2022 12 A31H : AR
#£3,322,513,0007T) B4 RAFEHEA T
BIT UEREBETFALENSE TRITER
HiER2EBIRERN 27 -

FRD B R R YA E N A R BER
S48 S 8 B T 2 A O M 26 S 1R R AT
mF :

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBETTT

(Restated)

(f&&E7))
Losses arising from changes in fair KA A A EERBEEKA

value less costs to sell of dairy cows FarEE (683,897) (179,334)
Gains arising from changes in fair REREHEM A EBEREES

value less costs to sell of forage plants AR 2 5 B ) W e 16,014 21,151
(Losses)/gains arising from changes in fair & 8R4 DR EER S A

value less costs to sell of beef cattle 28)m (FE) (3,624) 25,648

Gains arising on initial recognition of raw 1 W FE RS 12 X o (B (B S B AR AR

milk at fair value less costs to sell at the )25 TSR RO A EE A A9 U

point of harvest 694,044 843,216

22,537 710,681
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31 December 2023
202312 A31H

FEWRK IR

31 December 31 December

12A31H 12H31H

2023 2022

2023 % 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T AR®ET T

(Restated)

(&E7)

Trade receivables e GRIE 374,293 350,961
Impairment BE (7,244) -
367,049 350,961

For sales of raw milk, milk products and feed products,
the Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, except for new customers, where payment
in advance is normally required. The credit period of
sales of raw milk and feed products is 30 days since the
invoice date. The credit period of sales of milk products is
generally 30 to 45 days since the invoice date, extending
up to 90 days for major customers. Each customer has
a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a
credit control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In
view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s
trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit
risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

AEBRAZF ZHMHEERMY - IR
REMNEEGRRIELSRE  ENEFPR
SN SREEPATANRIA o REY R FH
HENEEMREZ AKX - M
ENEEN-—RABZAMRKI0EISR £
EEXFUERERZIOX - ERFHEEE
ERR o REESHREE R KFRE RS
| WERAEEESEPIA RS B R R B
ERE - BHNEHESREEEEREN -
EN XA RAEEEKRFRER S T
RAEFEBNEE  MABEXRETNEE
[R\B o AR M B H EUGRIR B SRR B
AR MR EMERERTA - BRFKIED
sTE e
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 22, FEWFIE (&)
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end RERE R - JEWGIE (NREBERE) K8
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net ZAME SRR TOT :

of loss allowance, is as follows:

31 December 31 December

12A31H 12H31H
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBEFTT
(Restated)
(gE7)
Within 1 month —MREAR 351,535 336,446
1 to 2 months 12218 A 8,061 10,121
2 to 3 months 2231 A 2,365 1,292
Over 3 months 31E A E 5,088 3,102
367,049 350,961
Included in the Group’s trade receivables are amounts due R2023F12A31H » REEBEREKRFKIE
from a related party of RMB18,830,000 as at 31 December BREEWEBETIRIE HEBARARK
2023 (31 December 2022: RMB12,769,000), which are 18,830,000/t (2022F 12 A31H : AR
repayable on credit terms similar to those offered to the 12,769,0007T) @ HIZBLURAAEEEE
major customers of the Group. EPRHEMEEKRIEE -
As at 31 December 2023, trade receivables of ®2023F12H31H - AR¥310,033,000
RMB310,033,000 (31 December 2022: RMB338,780,000) 5T (2022412 A310 : ARM338,780,000
were pledged to banks to secure certain bank borrowings TC) WEWGRIBEE IR TR1T - UERET
granted to the Group, as further detailed in note 27 to the REBERE TRITER - FEBL2HHB®R
financial statements. *HMIFE27 o
2023
2023F
RMB’000
AR¥TR
At beginning of year REH] -
Impairment losses (note 7) RIEBE (K1iZ7) 7,244

At end of year RER 7,244
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An impairment analysis is performed at the reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The expected credit loss rates are based on days past due
for groupings of various customer segments with similar
loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type,
customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit
or other forms of credit insurance). As at 31 December
2023, the balance of RMB7,244,000 with special risks was
assessed individually and fully impaired.

PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
OTHER ASSETS

22.

23.

B 75 ¥R R B

31 December 2023
202312 A31H

FEW R (&)

RS B HEAREEBETRES T - U
ATETEHEEEE  c BHEEEBBRIER
BERBEUEEBEINZEEE S EHER (B
ZibE - ERER  BEEFEUEIR UK
NEREFREMEERBREANEZE®E)
MBI RS E - W20235F12A318 &
BREKRERNSGEARE7 244,000 L& &
R ERIERERERE

ANFNE - Attt RERAEMEE

31 December 31 December

12A31H 12H31H

2023 2022

2023 %F 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARBTT

(Restated)

(f&&E7))

Prepayments FERTKIE 259,700 146,181
Deposits and other receivables e M E A e WA 17,737 9,720
277,437 155,901

The financial assets included in the above balances relate
to receivables for which there was no recent history of
default and past due amounts. At 31 December 2022
and 2023, the Group expected that the credit risk was
considered to be low and the expected credit loss rate was
immaterial, thus the loss allowance was assessed to be
minimal.

As at 31 December 2023, the balance of other receivable
due from a director was RMB6,442,000 (31 December
2022: nil).

FIA Ll AR SR E E BT B B R
BIHR S R BN IB A - 20224 K
2023F 12 A31H ' AEEEEERRKRE
K BFEHEEEBERTAEX  AitEE
BERETTERED -

R2023F 12 A31H » EthENESRIEL
A ANREES,442,0007T (20224 12 A 31
B:Z).
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24, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 24.

PLEDGED DEPOSITS

RERRESEYURCERER

31 December

31 December

12H31H 12H31H

2023 2022

2023 % 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AR®ET T

(Restated)

(&E5))

Cash and bank balances e MIRTTAE 84 274,208 403,932
Less: Pledged deposits A BT (209) (5,986)
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESEFEEY 273,999 397,946

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group were denominated in the following
currencies. The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Chinese Mainland’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

RBERR  AEENRE RB|ITEBIAT
FIEHGE - ARBETHEERIBREME
% BEREHE AU CHMNEE D) M
(e - EERNMETERTE)  TAEEWL
AHRBERBREIIEXBNRITHARE

RMRHMER -

31 December

31 December

12H31H 12A31H

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARBEFTT

(Restated)

(gE:75)

RMB AR 265,125 242,772
uUsb ETT 8,303 160,973
Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD”) BIT 416 -
Singapore Dollar (“SGD”) T 364 187
Total BET 274,208 403,932
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202312 A31H

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 24. HE2RBESEEYURECEHEXK
PLEDGED DEPOSITS (continued) (&)
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on RITH S RBEEHRITERNERZH =X
daily bank deposit rates. The cash and bank balances are BREFIE - IRE RIBITARTFASIIL EE
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of B HIE B RIFHVERTT o
default.
As at 31 December 2023, the bank balances of RMB4,000 MH2023F12A318 - E AR 4,0007T
(31 December 2022: RMB5,949,000) were pledged to bank (2022912 HA31H : AR%5,949,0007T)
as security for the Group’s bank borrowings, as further RIRITAMRIER TRIT - (FERAREBERITHE
detailed in note 27 to the financial statements. HHER - FHEFEL MM B WERMEE27 -
As at 31 December 2023, the bank balances of MR2023F12A31H + HARK205,0007T
RMB205,000 (31 December 2022: RMB37,000) were (2022F12A31H : AR¥37,0007T) Ay4R
pledged to bank as security for the purchase of imported ITHBERTRIT FRBEEDEBERENE
alfalfa. R o
TRADE PAYABLES 25. FEfFRIE
31 December 31 December
12H31H 12H31H
2023 2022
2023 %F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBTT
(Restated)
(f&E7))
Trade payables FEfT3RIE 785,309 1,058,287
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25.

TRADE PAYABLES (continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of
each reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as

25.

PR (&)

REBEMRENERAHNENFIRZ IR
BROMIAT

follows:
31 December 31 December
12A31H 12H31H
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARBEFTT
(Restated)
(gE7)
Within 2 months 2@EA A 477,966 884,365
2 to 6 months 22618 A 157,526 126,345
6 to 12 months 62 12M@A 124,107 36,038
Over 1 year 1A E 25,710 11,539
785,309 1,058,287

As at 31 December 2023, the trade payables of
RMB34,823,000 (31 December 2022: RMB118,119,000),
which are due to a related party, are repayable on credit
terms similar to those offered by the major suppliers of the
Group.

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on the terms of 30-180 days.

M2023F12831H + AR®34,823,0007TC
(2022412H31H : AR¥118,119,000
TL) KE RIBE AR EE E EHER
FTIR B BRI Z S 6N T B
jj— °

ERFIETEE - BEEHBEER30E180
K o
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OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

26.

31 December 2023

2023F12 A31H

HttENRAREEE

31 December

31 December

12A31H 12H31H
2023 2022
2023 % 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 ARET T ARBT T
(Restated)
(&E5))
Current BP &R

Other payables E M E IR 24,126 18,148
Accruals FEETIEE 17,481 38,175
Payroll payable ERTE 71,672 72,288
Construction payables JEfTIEEES 228,401 318,903
Contract liabilities BHBE (a) 10,970 19,106
Interest payable FERTFE 16,349 10,774
368,999 477,394

Non-current JEBP AR
Other non-current liability HEM3EmeakE (b) - 91,342
Contract liabilities BHBE (a) - 4,329
- 95,671
Included in the Group’s other payable was amount due to M2023F12A31H » REBE H A FE R

a related party of RMB2,281,000 as at 31 December 2023
(81 December 2022: RMB2,653,000).

THBIEEM @5 A AR 2,281,0007T
(2022412 A31H : AR¥2653,0007T) °
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26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (continued) 26. HtENFEREIER (&)
Notes: Hiat -
(a)  Contract liabilities (a) AHEE
The contract liabilities of the Group represent only the REEBNESYNBABERESTENMNZKIE -
advances from customers. The following table shows TREINZSHREHVT AL BEBES
revenue recognised that was included in the balance BB RERUWA -
of contract liabilities at the beginning of each reporting
period.
31 December 31 December
12H31H 12H31H
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETFT
(Restated)
(#&&75)
Advances from customers BEBNMNFIE 19,106 11,926
(b)  Other non-current liability (b) HiERBEE

The balance of other non-current liability as at 31
December 2022 represents the deposit from a third
party customer, which was paid back to the customer
during the current year.

R2022512 A31AMEMIERE ARG
HEAENRAFERERFPNREE=
FEENESE -
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31 December 2023
202312 A31H

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 27. FESBITHER
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
20235128318 202212 A318
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
BERFIE(%) HMAE ARBTT  EBAE%) R ARETR
(Restated)
(&)
Current BN
Bank loans - secured BTER - BEH 4.00-4.80 2024 1,560,212 3.8-5.08 2023 467,346
Current portion of long-term R HASR{TEFRENE
bank loans - secured Ho - HHEE 3.40-8.86 2024 456,201 4.21-7.29 2023 400,747
2,016,413 868,093
Non-current FENE
Bank loans - secured RITEH - BHA 3.40-8.86  2025-2028 1,383,910 4.21-7.29  2024-2028 1,304,344
3,400,323 2,172,437
31 December 31 December
128318 12H831H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AREFIT
(Restated)
(&75)
Analysed into: DA
Bank loans: SRITEFK
Within one year or on demand —FRHIREK 2,016,413 868,093
In the second year F_F 523,680 333,818
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FoFEFLF (BEEREMF) 860,230 898,253
Above five years AFNRE - 72,273
3,400,323 2,172,437

Notes:

(a) As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s bank facilities
amounted to RMB4,710,046,000 (31 December 2022:
RMB4,589,279,000), of which the unutilized bank
facilities were RMB1,196,984,000 (31 December 2022:
RMB2,120,287,000). The Group'’s facilities are secured
by the pledge of certain of the Group’s assets.

Wizt -

MN2023%F12A31 0 - A&EEWIETT
& A ARME4710,046,0007T (2022
F12H31H : AR¥4,589,279,000
L) HRRBANRTRHERARE
1,196,984,0007T (2022412 4318 :
AR%2 120,287,0007T) ° ANE @ H @S
BLAE A TEEFEER -
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31 December 2023

2023%F 12 A31H

27.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b) The Group’s bank loans are secured by:

)

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

As at 31 December 2023, pledged deposits of
RMB4,000 were pledged to banks to secure
certain bank borrowings granted to the Group
(31 December 2022: RMB5,949,000);

As at 31 December 2023, trade receivables
of RMB310,033,000 were pledged to banks to
secure certain bank borrowings granted to the
Group (31 December 2022: RMB338,780,000);

As at 31 December 2023, inventories of
RMB1,045,701,000 were pledged to banks to
secure certain bank borrowings granted to the
Group (31 December 2022: RMB568,134,000);

As at 31 December 2023, property, plant and
equipment of RMB659,456,000 were pledged
to banks to secure certain bank borrowings
granted to the Group (31 December 2022:
RMB346,383,000);

As at 31 December 2023, biological assets of
RMB3,684,156,000 were pledged to banks to
secure certain bank borrowings granted to the
Group (31 December 2022: RMB3,322,513,000);

27.

FTESRITHER (&)

Wizt - (&)

(b)

AEEHIRTTEFUA T I F AR

)

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

®2023412A318 ' 2EA
FERARE4 000 TEEE TR
T UEREBTFASENET
RITIE K (202212 A318 :
AR#5,949,0007T) :

R2023%12A318 @ BWFE
AR#310,033,000 T 2K
FRIT WERBETFTAEEXN
A TRITIEFK (2022F 12 A 31
B : AR#338,780,0007T) :

M2023%512A310  FEAR
#1,045,701,000 7 2 K3 F 4R
T UERBETFTAEENET
RITIE K (202212 A318 :
AR#568,134,0007T) :

MR2023F12A31H * M -
Wi s AR 659,456,000
TEEPFRT  UERR
FTAEEHE FRTMER
(2022% 128318 : AR%
346,383,0007T) :

R2023412A318 * £W&
EAR3,684,156,000 L E &
BTRT  UERETFAEE
#E FTIRITER (20225612 A
318 : AR%3,322,513,000
TT)
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27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

As at 31 December 2023, right-of-use assets
of RMB13,134,000 were pledged to banks to
secure certain bank borrowings granted to the
Group (31 December 2022: RMB13,410,000);

As at 31 December 2023, shares of a subsidiary
of RMB562,000,000 were pledged to banks to
secure certain bank borrowings granted to the
Group (31 December 2022: RMB172,833,000);

As at 31 December 2023, investments in certain
subsidiaries of RMB1,517,996,000 were pledged
to banks to secure certain bank borrowings
granted to the Group (31 December 2022:
RMB2,439,259,000);

As at 31 December 2023, certain of the Group’s
bank loans amounting to RMB3,236,561,000
were guaranteed by the Company and certain
subsidiaries of the Group (31 December 2022:
RMB971,968,000).

B 75 ¥R R B

31 December 2023
202312 A31H

27. FTEMBITEIRGE)

Wizt - (&)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

R2023%F12A318 @ FRAEE
EARA13,134,000 T2 EA
FRIT MERBETFTAEEXN
B TRITIEFK (2022F 12 A 31
B : AR#13,410,0007T) :

R2023%12 43180 » WEBAF
B AR #562,000,0007TE
B FRT UWERBFAE
B & TIRITER (2022612
A318 : AR#172,833,000
T

R2023%12A318 @ &TH B
AFEEARKE1,517,996,000
TEEPFRT  UERR
FTARAEEHE FRTMER
(2022F12A31H : ARM
2,439,259,0007T) :

R20234 128318 X&EH
AR%3 236,561,000t &
FHROTERBAQAMAE
ErE THBARREER
(2022%F12A31H : AR
971,968,0007T) °
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2023%F12A31H

27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 27. :tESETHE(E)
(continued)

Notes: (continued) Bist - ()
(c) The bank borrowings are denominated in following (c) IRITIEFIATINERETE -
currencies:
31 December 31 December
12A31H 12H31H
2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFT
(Restated)
(5&&E7))
usbD ETT 256,925 289,126
RMB AR 3,143,398 1,883,311
3,400,323 2,172,437
28. DEFERRED TAX 28. EZEHIE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during FREEFHEEEREENESHNT :
the year are as follows:
Deferred tax liabilities ELEBBEEE
Withholding
taxes
SRk
RMB’000
AR¥TR
At 1 January 2022 (restated) 7202291818 (4£E7) 3,825
Foreign exchange movement (restated) HNEEAE) (4L ES)) 354
Gross deferred tax liabilities recognised in the 75"2022@12)? 31 B MR E M BARR &
consolidated statement of financial position at FERRIELESIE B EARE
31 December 2022 (restated) (& &751) 4,179
Foreign exchange movement HNE & B 156
Gross deferred tax liabilities recognised in the E"2023¢12H 31 AR E AR R
consolidated statement of financial position at 31 HRNIELET BB EARE

December 2023 4,335
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DEFERRED TAX (continued) 28.

Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
the following item:

B 75 ¥R R B

31 December 2023
202312 A31H

ERERE ()
EEBEEE (&)
BRI TSR B HPRER A E E AR HER -

31 December 31 December

12A31H 12A31H

2023 2022

2023 % 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBTT

(Restated)

(&7

Tax losses TIAE 18 54,195 70,635

As at 31 December 2023, certain of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries had unused tax losses of RMB54,195 000
(31 December 2022: RMB70,635,000) incurred by the
non-agricultural business in the PRC. These unused tax
losses will expire in subsequent 5 years as disclosed in
the following table if not utilised. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in relation to such tax losses as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

M2023F 128318 AEBEETFTHEWE
NERAEFREMFELEERELENRFEATIE
BB A ARBES54195,0007T (20224512 A
318 : AR#70,635,0007T) ° tH NRATHE
B ELERGANESESERERESFAT
H(ETHNA) - ARSI ARENERZE
FRERE A EA A BB K BH AR FhRZ
EREEBERRARERIBEE -

31 December 31 December

12A31H 12H31H

2023 2022

2023 & 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AR®ET T

(Restated)

(&=sE75)

Year 2023 2023F & - 19,636
Year 2024 2024F[E 31,727 31,727
Year 2025 2025F E 17,674 17,674
Year 2026 2026 F E - -
Year 2027 2027 % E - 1,598
Year 2028 2028 F & 4,794 -

54,195 70,635
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31 December 2023
2023%F12A31H

28.

29.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group,
the applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable
for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the accumulated profits of the
PRC subsidiaries amounting to RMB2,465,758,000 as at 31
December 2023 (31 December 2022: RMB2,764,795,000),
as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future because the Group will retain the funding for the
development in Mainland China.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL

Shares

28.

29.

EAERR (&)
EEBEEE (&)

BIECPEAREMBCEMEHE) - BRF
B A A L I INE (R BB MM IR B E S
KA B AN 10% M TEFOEL  fZ IR E B 2008
FA1A1HRBER  #BARK2007F12A31H
BEENEF o a0 B R INE R E E FT
EMREEER 2 HTFERKE - BIFTA
BRAERERMBHHE AEBEMNERAHE
BH5% o Bt - A BEZER N B AL 32
KK B AR B20084F1 518 EELNEF
FRE R A AR SRR TEIOR o M0 R B BB /8
RNEIR2023F 12 A3 AWM ERFBHARE
2,465,758,0007C (2022412 A31H : AR
#52,764,795,0007T) REr & B MR T IRE
SETHIE A - Th A AL B AE S ) B B
FrEBARME BEARAEERBRBETEH
AEEMNES  ZSEREZERUERL
RRATGETSHEE o

ARAAEBRRI N BRE A FEERMAFHR
&R -

L&

w12

31 December 31 December

128318 12831H
2023 2022
20234 20224
Issued and fully paid: BEITRET
Number of shares in issue BTN EE 700,463,112 699,857,112
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SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 29. IRA& (&)
Shares (continued) B (&)
31 December 31 December
12H31H 12H31H
2023 2022
2023 % 2022%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARBTTT
(Restated)
(g=:5)
Share capital & A 2,435,712 2,432,340
A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital RABIRANEEFENT -
is as follows:
Number of
shares in
issue Share capital
BEITRNEE [N
RMB’000
ARBTT
(Restated)
(& E7)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 R2021F12A318 &
2022F1A1H 336,111,968 1,892,652
Share split D 285,695,171 -
Issuance of shares upon listing on the Hong R &EEEBI LT EHE TG
Kong Stock Exchange 30,640,000 159,164
Issuance of shares pursuant to share option 1R BB AT £ 38 1T R D
scheme 16,368,300 202,647
Transfer from loans from a former EREFIREER
shareholder 31,041,673 177,877

At 31 December 2022 M2022%F12 A31H 699,857,112 2,432,340
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31 December 2023
2023%F12A31H

29.

30.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 29. IR (&)
Shares (continued) B (&)
Number of
shares in
issue  Share capital
ERITROHE B2
RMB’000
AR®ET T
At 1 January 2023 20231 A1H 699,857,112 2,432,340
Issuance of shares pursuant to the exercise RIETT{E B RIEZITIRG
of the over-allotment option 606,000 3,372
At 31 December 2023 MR2023%F12H31H 700,463,112 2,435,712

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as and when declared by the Company.
All ordinary shares carry one vote per share without
restrictions. The ordinary shares have no par value.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

In July 2020, the Company implemented the “AAG
Performance Share Plan” (the “AAG PSP"). The purpose of
the AAG PSP is to, inter alia, foster an ownership culture
within the AustAsia Group which aligns the interests of
executives and employees of the AustAsia Group with the
interests of its shareholders and to motivate participants in
the AAG PSP to achieve key financial and operational goals
of AAG and/or its respective business units. The AAG PSP
shall continue in effect for a term of five years, provided
always that the AAG PSP may continue beyond the above
stipulated period with the approval of the shareholders of
the Company.

Under the terms of the AAG PSP, the directors and
employees of the AustAsia Group who have met the
relevant criteria set out in the AAG PSP or by the
remuneration committee of AAG (“AAG remuneration
committee”), are eligible to participate in the AAG PSP.
Controlling shareholders (and their associates) of the
Company are also eligible to participate in the AAG PSP
provided that their participation and actual or maximum
number of shares in AAG and terms of any award to be
granted to them under the AAG PSP have been duly
approved by independent shareholders of the Company.

30.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

The ordinary shares which are the subject of the awards
are based on 100% of the grant. The shares awarded on
the vesting date could range from 0% to 200% depending
on the achievement of pre-determined conditions within
specified periods. Settlement will be in cash unless the
Company has achieved an IPO by the date of settlement,
in which event settlement will be in AAG shares.

For equity-settled tranches, the Group applied the binomial
option pricing model in measuring the fair value of the
share awards at the grant date. The equity-settled tranches
are recognised as expenses over the performance period.
The equity-settled component referring to this right is
recognised as AAG performance share plan reserve in note
31 to the financial statements.

The following table illustrates the movements of the AAG
Performance Share Plan during the year:

30.

B 75 ¥R R B

31 December 2023
202312 A31H

AR 40 B E 1 A (8)

EARBMEBRRMDRIEI00% K Tt E
e RNEBEHEBORDLEANRO%ZE
200% 2 [+ B EUR K SR G 72 15 7 B B
REEXBENR - BRIERNARELAEASHAE
BTHERXAAEE  SRBURSETE
g EARRCERBERAHES A
AAGRRIDHEITHHE -

HRgEEENEY AKRERAT ZEAEA
HEEERYREERR T A RN ZEH

ARBE - AL B ER BB EER
BB - SEEAIE RN B ER
TR NI S TR BAAGH MR D 8)
B -

TRINTEARNAAGE MR M & BB 1F
o

2023 2022

2023F 20224

Number Number

gE HE

Outstanding at 1 January ®1 A1 BETEN 1,293,100 9,929,600

Granted during the year FARH - 682,100

Exercised during the year FRITE (611,000) (568,600)
Issuance of shares pursuant to share option  ARIEEEIEAE T 21247 TR% (D

scheme (Note 29) (H15E29) - (8,750,000)

Outstanding at 31 December W12 A31 BTSN 682,100 1,293,100

The Group recognised expenses of RMB6,501,000
during the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022:
RMB91,392,000).

ANEBHE2023F 12831 B ILFEHR
X ARE6,501,0007T (20224 : AR
91,392,0007T) °
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31 December 2023
2023%F12A31H

31. RESERVES 31. f&E

31 December 31 December
12A31H 12H31H
2023 2022
2023 % 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 ARET T ARBT T
(Restated)
(&E5))
Statutory reserve EERES (a) 517,989 514,777
AAG Share Appreciation Plan AAGHR 17 18 (BT EI (b) (12,735) (12,735)
Japfa Performance Share Plan FEREIRDETE (c) 7,099 7,099
AAG Performance Share Plan AAGHE R 17512l 30 19,423 17,476
Merger reserve EfEE (@) (54,866) (54,866)
Fair value reserve AABERE (e) (52,197) (43,367)
Foreign currency translation reserve HNEE IR R (f) 71,150 75,152
Retained profits BFAHE 2,145,922 2,637,925
2,641,785 3,141,461

(a) Statutory reserve (a) EERES

In accordance with the Foreign Enterprise Law
applicable to the subsidiaries in the PRC, the
subsidiaries are required to make appropriation to
Statutory Reserve (“SR”). At least 10% of the statutory
profits after tax as determined in accordance with the
applicable PRC accounting standards and regulations
must be allocated to SR until the cumulative total of
the SR reaches 50% of the subsidiaries’ registered
capital. Subject to approval from the relevant PRC
authorities, SR may be used to offset any accumulated
losses or increase in the registered capital of the
subsidiary. SR is not available for dividend distribution
to shareholders.

RIEE R BE A E A F & o
EhEE) WBRARABBETHMB
T o RBEA B S ERNFER
ERNEEBEMBEOZE D 10%BERN S
REEERFET  BERZEAERHBTNZR
FHAZER BN R M E R e50% -
K BEAREAPE X ERET A
FFMESH I B A B M B AR £ R At
BRI < AT FE B TEARMK
RIRBERS,

2023 2022

2023 F 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREFT

(Restated)

(LE5)

Balance at 1 January B A1 B/ 514,777 470,603
Transferred from retained profits B HE S 3,212 44,174
Balance at 31 December M12 A31 BV & R 517,989 514,777




Annual Report 2023
SRC=EER

Notes to Financial Statements

31. RESERVES (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

AAG Share Appreciation Plan

The Group operated share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of
the share options include employees in the Group.
The Group adopted the share option scheme (“AAG
Share Appreciation Plan”) on 6 June 2012. As at 31
December 2022, the Share Appreciation Plan was
settled by the issuance of an aggregate number of
180,800 shares after taking into account the share split
and the offering price of HK$6.40.

Japfa Performance Share Plan

The Company’s former holding company, Japfa Ltd.,
operates an equity-settled share based compensation
plan. The shares were granted to employees of the
Company and its PRC subsidiaries, subject to certain
conditions being met.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference between
the consideration paid and the net assets of a
subsidiary restructured under common control. The
Group has applied the pooling of interest method for
business combination under common control.

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve represents the present value
changes recognised for the Company’s equity
investment for which the Company has elected to
present the value changes in other comprehensive
income.

B 75 ¥R R B

31 December 2023
202312 A31H

31. @B (&)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

AAGR 13 1B {ERT &)

NEBMEN T ERESS - BORMY
AEELCENKINEMERNAE B
2HERBYE LI BRENSE

ERSAEREASEENES - £&
ER2012F6 A6 AHEA T HRETE
(TAAGRR 3G EETEI]) ° 72022412

A318 @ BHEETEEREITAHR
180,800 IR A% 1D (A 7T M AR 1D 2 #F I 3%
EE6.40/870) BITHEH -

E B AER R AT 5

QT BT A BB B & LA 25 A
HURDBEROTMAE - FEET

AR FREPEMBATNES
ERTZERD -

BB
EHtEERE NN EEAEEGT
BHENMBAREERFEZHNER -
AEERBERGERFETHREZERT
MEREH -

DNARBERE

RRBERMEIEERRARBRER
ENREREY  ARRREHZZEE
FHARMBE Y
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31 December 2023
2023%F 12 A31H

31. RESERVES (continued)

(f)

31. f@&E (&)

Foreign currency translation reserve f) IMEBRE RS
The foreign currency translation reserve represents SN E B REE RS RASH
exchange differences arising from the translation of DMEB TR EBITERELED
foreign operations whose functional currencies are X =5 o
different from that of the Group’s presentation currency.
2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFT
(Restated)
(g&E75))
Balance at the beginning of year REYH G R 75,152 107,875
Net effect of exchange differences BINEB T HEENFENERE
arising from translation of foreign pp-2
operations (4,002) (82,723)
Balance at the end of year RERM AR 71,150 75,152

32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

32. HZERTRERMT

Changes in liabilities arising from financing (a) RMETBFELENEBEEH
activities
2023 20234
Interest- Other payables
bearing and accruals-
bank Lease interest
borrowings liabilities payable
Hth B RER
FEstEE -
ST ESRITER HEAE ERFE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARBT T AR¥T T
At 1 January 2023 7202351818 2,172,437 1,330,524 10,774
Changes from financing MERSRELD)
cash flows 1,247,988 (147,967) (185,387)
New leases e - 55,232 =
Revision of lease terms FHEEET - 187,123 -
Foreign exchange movement §MNE& & &) (20,102) = —
Interest expense capitalised EA{LF| B85 - = 2,329
Interest expense FMEMZ - 80,315 188,633
At 31 December 2023 M2023%F12H31H 3,400,323 1,505,227 16,349
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Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities (continued)

2022

B 75 ¥R R B

31 December 2023
202312 A31H

FERERERME (B)
(a) BMEFBFELNRESD (H)

20224

Interest-
bearing Loans from a Other payables
bank Lease former  and accruals -
borrowings liabilities shareholder interest payable
HoAh AT RIE K
JEFHIER —
HERITER HEAR RIRRER FERTA 2
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREETTT ARETT ARETT ARETTT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(EE5) (g &E5) (=E5) (E5)
At 1 January 2022 202261 18 1,708,547 963,731 162,836 13,406
Changes from financing BERESREE
cash flows 439,868 (146,664) = (156,642)
New leases MHE - 535,306 = =
Revision of lease rents ~ FA&E:] = 102,580 = =
Revision of lease terms A HIEE] = (196,637) = =
Capitalisation of loans  RIRREFTEA(L
from a former
shareholder - - (177,877) -
Foreign exchange SN B
movement 24,022 - 15,041 -
Interest expense BREFERZ
capitalised - - - 6,421
Interest expense FEHZ = 72,208 = 147,589
At 31 December 2022 2022612 A31H 2,172,437 1,330,524 - 10,774
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31 December 2023
2023%F 12 A31H

32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 32. #4LAeBEE&REBRMTT (H)
OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b)  Total cash outflow for leases (b) HERESRLAE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the ARERERNHER R A
statements of cash flows is as follows: mr
2023 2022
2023 %F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
(Restated)
(F&E7))
Within operating activities g EE 25,850 28,256
Within financing activities EREEEF 147,967 146,664
Total CEl 173,817 174,920
33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 33. ZEAE
No significant contingent liabilities were recognised within RER  AEETERRABEARGEE -
the Group during the year.
34. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 34. EEIKW
Details of the Group’s assets pledged for the purchase of REERBEEEOEHBEREBMORITERM
imported alfalfa and the Group’s bank loans are included ERHEEF BNV G REME24 KM
in note 24 and note 27 to the financial statements. 27 °
35. COMMITMENTS 35. &IE
The Group had the following contractual commitments at REFERERERE TG LEPE
the end of each reporting period:
31 December 31 December
12H31H 12H31H
2023 2022
2023 % 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBTT
(Restated)
(&E5))
Capital commitments in respect of: BT A EBE A FASE
Construction in progress FEIRE 247 123,803
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31 December 2023
202312 A31H

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BHAXRS
(a) The Group had the following transactions with (a) AEERFAHEBEBAIETTIUT
related parties during the year: 5
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
et ARMF T ARBEFTT
(Restated)
(gE5)
Entity controlled by the shareholder =ARARAEATE
which has significant influence BRI B B 48
over the Company
Sales of products EmiEE (i) 200,815 149,710
Entities controlled by the same RN R IR R
Controlling Shareholders of the e E 8
Company
Purchase of inventories BERFE (ii) 118,789 225,964
Management fee expense ERBERMAY (iii) 2,940 3,373
Former immediate holding company Al & A 7]
Interest expense FEMZ (iv) - 10,480
Notes: Hiat
(i) The sales of products to the entity controlled by (i) MEARRRBEERATENRE

(if)

(i)

(iv)

the shareholder which has significant influence
over the Company were made according to
the market prices and conditions offered to the
other major customers of the Group.

The purchase of inventories was mainly related
to feed. The transactions have been conducted
in accordance with market prices agreed
between the parties.

The management fee expense was mainly
related to the service charge by the entity
controlled by the same Controlling Shareholders
of the Company. The fee was equal to the cost
of providing the services plus 5%.

The interest expense was mainly related to
the loans from Japfa Ltd. Before 30 December
2022, Japfa Ltd. was the immediate holding
company of the Company. Loans from Japfa
Ltd. are non-trade in nature, unsecured, bearing
interest at a rate Libor plus margin per annum.

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

ZHINBERBIEHMERBET
RERAAEEEMEIERFRZ
TS E R KR HETT o

BEFETEEANARH - &
EXZTHIRBETEENT S
EFRETT °

ERBARAYEEZHHBARA
[R) — ¥ AR A% 3R 128 51 ) B KU ER
MR EBEERE - ZBRAZNIR
MRS HIB A N5 % ©

FERTXFEHRBEENE
RAEM - N2022412 A30H
Al - EEAARRNEETER
DAl REEEHNEREIFE
SME - EERRIZRBRT
R¥FSBMEFEEE ©
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31 December 2023
2023%F12A31H

36.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 36. BHBLXZ (&)

(b)

(c)

Compensation of key management personnel (b) FEBXTEEEAEHH :
of the Group:

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET ARBETTT

(Restated)

(fe=5)

Short-term employee benefits REEBER 20,721 20,305

Share-based payments expenses AR B E TR N 3 2 4,274 85,254
Total compensation paid to key INTEEEBEABNTIRE

management personnel 24,995 105,559

Further details of directors’ and the chief executive's BFRAEERZERTTHRAEMEHE—

emoluments are included in note 9 to the financial T BEHR B RERMFE ©
statements.
Outstanding balances with related parties (c) EREBITHRESEE

Details of the Group’s outstanding balances with REREHKR - NEE MR TR
related parties as at the end of each reporting ERERRFFIB I RN B I WR M
period are disclosed in notes 22, 23, 25 and 26 to 222325826 °

the financial statements.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37.

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

As at 31 December 2023

B 75 ¥R R B

31 December 2023
2023912 A31H

BERABSNEMIA
RBERR  SESHTANKREENT !

A2023F12A31H

Financial assets ERMEE
Financial
assets at
amortised
cost Total
R 8 A A
TENESREE a5t
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR¥T
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEEYD 273,999 273,999
Pledged deposits BHEMFR 209 209
Trade receivables JrE W e 367,049 367,049
Deposits and other receivables e R HAEWFIA 17,737 17,737
Total &5t 658,994 658,994
Financial liabilities SRaE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost Total
R R AR
SENEREE &st
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥T T
Trade payables FERT IR 785,309 785,309
Financial liabilities included in other AT AE M FER FIB R ERTE B /Y
payables and accruals SRBE 268,876 268,876
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTEIRTITER 3,400,323 3,400,323
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,505,227 1,505,227
Total &5t 5,959,735 5,959,735
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37.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

As at 31 December 2022 (restated)

2022512 31 H (K& &E%)

Financial assets TREE
Financial
assets at
fair value
through other Financial
comprehensive assets at
income  amortised cost Total
ARREERE
BHZETA
Hih2mz=Ea REIERCR
CHMEE FENSREE A&t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETTT ARBETTT ARBETTT
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESEEY - 397,946 397,946
Pledged deposits [REEEEIER Y - 5,086 5,986
Trade receivables FEW R IA - 350,961 350,961
Deposits and other receivables &< N Hth fE U FIE = 9,720 9,720
Long-term receivable = B FE W R IE - 84,992 84,992
Equity investment designated  {EEANUAAEBER=
at fair value through other BHEE T AHM
comprehensive income SHEHBEHRERE 8,511 = 8,511
Total A&t 8,511 849,605 858,116
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31 December 2023
202312 A31H

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37. RERE-sMEMIE (&)
(continued)
Financial liabilities cRaE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost Total
big: X1 |DWIN
AENERAE A&t
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARBET T
Trade payables FERT IR 1,058,287 1,058,287
Financial liabilities included in other T AE M FER FIB R ERTE B /Y
payables and accruals TR BE 439,167 439,167
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FERITER 2,172,437 2,172,437
Lease liabilities HEaE 1,330,524 1,330,524
Total &5t 5,000,415 5,000,415
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 38. QAAREEFE

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, pledged
deposits, trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, trade payables, other payables, short-term
interest-bearing bank borrowings approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of
these instruments.

The fair values of long-term receivable and long-term
interest-bearing bank borrowings have been calculated
by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities. The changes in fair value
as a result of the Group’s own non-performance risk for
long-term receivable and interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings as at the end of the year were assessed to be
insignificant.

TREERBEZAREBEDNRARIARE
RHpEHTARMEXBELBRIEENEN
TETENRXZMETFHNEREARK - T57
ERBRIBR G EAREE -

ReRREEFEY  BEBFR - BRFK
B e REMBYWEIE - BNRIE - Hi
BN IR - RHET BRITERZARBED
UREREE - TEANZETANEHE
HLE -

RHEREFER R SRITERXRZANE
ECBBERAEARLGK  FERRRF
HRERWTAZHAANNE - HIRFARR
RenBETHRRKRGE  -AAEEEHR
FIE AR B YRR MG B ERIT R E M B
TN TEAOREMERN A ABELES D
HRLTERK -
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38.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

The fair values of unlisted equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income have
been estimated using the market approach. The market
approach indicates the value of a company based on a
comparison of the valuation of comparable publicly traded
companies and transactions in the similar field of business.
This may be done by looking at key value indicators, such
as multiples to earnings, book value, sales and cash flows,
after taking into consideration relevant adjustment factors
to reflect the differences between the subject company
and the comparable companies. The Group has adopted
the Guideline Company Method (“GCM”) in deciding the
fair value of its investment in FUAA. GCM indicates that the
market value of the shares of a business by comparing it
to publicly traded companies in similar lines of business.
The conditions and prospects of companies in similar
lines of business depend on common factors such as
the overall demand for their products and services. The
directors believe that the estimated fair values resulting
from the valuation technique, which are recorded in the
consolidated statements of financial position, and the
related changes in fair values, which are recorded in other
comprehensive income, are reasonable, and that they were
the most appropriate values at the end of each reporting
period.

38.

[ REEE (F)

BERUAAEBENEEREHA AL ME
EEIFETREREN R EBERER
MEEEITEE - MBEREAI L ETHAE
M ERBUEBELINR BB RER R —
FABMERE KBEEHBEHEAEXR @ &
RATHBEREEER  HIWAFEEH -
REE - HERMRSREER - WRBREF
WARBEALL AR ZENER - KREED
RAESIREDE ([l RARPE]) UHEEE
RFUAARR BN R LEE - 585 REDER
BECEEYCEHRURBHREN LT ARE
TTHBERRTZEXEROMSEE 5
BELRBEHE R R AR & AT R BURR K
RIEZ fInSHEERRRGHEBETE -
EERA KAGERMEEH - XNEAE
BRRRIIBEN G R EE  URREM
2HERINENDABENEBRES NES
2 BREWERRBREE -
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to
the valuation of biological assets and other financial asset
which were measured in Level 3 as at 31 December 2022

and 2023:

Type

i)

Valuation techniques

fh{E R

BrEE R MY EE

31 December 2023
202312 A31H

38. QAREEEGE)

Significant unobservable
inputs

EXTITBEERARE

AN ABR2022F K 2023F 12 AT BHAY
BERRE=ZHPHEnHtbsREEHERN
FAMERTAEBERGASBENRE

Inter-relationship
between significant
unobservable inputs and
fair value measurements
EXRTAEERAHBRER
AEEFTERZENEERR

Heifers and calves

B REL

The fair value of 14-month-
old heifers and calves is
determined by reference

to the local market selling
price.
14@ARBEREREBEFH R
REEDZ2REWMISEEE
F oo

For the groups of heifers
and calves which are
younger than 14 months
old, incremental costs
required to raise the cows
from their respective ages
at the end of each reporting
period up to 14 months
were subtracted.
HRTm14E RSB R R
B OREEZMEHIRBLD
FREBFRAEE14EA
PR RYIGERAR -

For heifers and calves
which aged between 14
and 24 months, incremental
costs required to raise the
heifers from 14 months to
their respective ages at

the end of each reporting
period were added.
H4ZE 24 A B A R
B EINESREPREE
BAR14EAREES BF
e P 5 B IG SRR o

Estimated local market
selling prices of 14-month-
old heifers was RMB21,800
and RMB21,800 per head
as at 31 December 2023
and 2022, respectively.

MR 2023F & 2022% 12 A 31
H - 14EAXREXFHEH
MSEBEFONATEAR
#21,8007T X A R#21,800
IT o

Incremental costs for
heifers and calves which
are younger than 14 months
old ranged from RMB9,531
to RMB 18,502 and
RMB9,755 to RMB18,373
per head as at 31
December 2023 and 2022,
respectively.

20234 22022412 A 31
B Tmil4EANEEENX
S RIBFMIBERARDFIN
TARKQ 531 TEARKE
18,502t R AR#9,755 T &
AR#18,3737T °

Incremental costs for
heifers and calves which
aged between 14 and 24
months were RMB 13,555
and RMB13,242 per head
as at 31 December 2023
and 2022, respectively.
2023 %F & 2022% 12 A 31
B 14Z24@AMBKSF
MBS K SRS KA S 7
AAREA13,555 TR AREE
13,2427T °

An increase in the
estimated local market
selling price used would
result in increase in the

fair value of the heifers

and calves, and vice

versa.

FrIst ARG g misEE L
HREHERFREFHAR
BEEN - RZIA

An increase in the
incremental costs used
would result in a decrease
in the fair value of heifers
and calves which are
younger than 14 months,
and vice versa.

FRE% F 038 & X 2S48 1N 5 3
Tm14E BB G MBS
BAREBERY - RZIFA -

An increase in the
incremental costs used
would result in an increase
in the fair value of heifers
and calves which aged
between 14 and 24

months, and vice versa.
FRrE% A 038 2 X 2N 48 1N 8 350
142248 AW B P4 R B4
BAREBEEN  RZIA -
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38.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to
the valuation of biological assets and other financial asset
which were measured in Level 3 as at 31 December 2022
and 2023: (continued)

Type

b

Valuation techniques

fhE{E M

38. L AEEE(H)

Significant unobservable
inputs

BEAFUERRARE

LA AR20224F Kk 2023F 12 A31 B4
BEMAE=ZFFENEMEREEHERN
AHEATABRGASENORE : (&)

Inter-relationship
between significant
unobservable inputs and
fair value measurements
ERFTUEEBARBER
AEEFAEZENEERE

Milkable cows

R

The fair values of milkable
cows are determined using
the multi-period excess
earnings method, which is
based on the discounted
future cash flows to be
generated by such milkable
Ccows.

RO RBEERZ R
BUNREET @ % ETER
B RAKEHF G E £ MRLIR AR K

NS N=}
BHeme -

The estimated feeding
costs per kilogram (“kg”)

of raw milk used in the
valuation process ranged
from RMB2.35 to RMB2.90
and RMB2.27 to RMB3.06
as at 31 December 2023
and 2022, respectively.
720234 [ 2022412 A 31
A REEGEPERANET
S RE R A E SRR 5 5
NFAREE2IBTEARKE
290 R AR227TTTEA
R#3.067T °

A milkable cow could have
as many as six lactation
cycles. Estimated average
daily milk yield per head

at each lactation cycle
ranges from 28kg to 40kg
and 27kg to 40kg as at 31
December 2023 and 2022,
respectively.
—SRRRKEHFE ML B AR BE S
EINIR © FA2023 FF ) 20226
12A318 - BEENMILA
HIR B BV fE St P9 B H E
PESRIN F28FZE40F
" M2TTREAT R °

An increase in the
estimated feeding costs
per kg of raw milk used
would result in a decrease
in the fair value of the
milkable cows, and vice
versa.

PR AR & T = REHE b T
AL A I N0 B BB BE A
DREERD  RZIA -

An increase in the
estimated average daily
milk yield per head used
would result in an increase
in the fair value of milkable
cows, and vice versa.
FrE B S & -1 il 511
HERENHSENEEHRKE
FHRAEBEEN - R2ZTR
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 38.

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to
the valuation of biological assets and other financial asset
which were measured in Level 3 as at 31 December 2022
and 2023: (continued)

B 75 ¥R R B

31 December 2023
202312 A31H

AREEFE (E)

LA AR20224F K 2023F 12 A31 B4
BEMAE=ZFFENEMEREEHERN
AHEATABRGASENORE : (&)

Inter-relationship
between significant

Significant unobservable unobservable inputs and

Type Valuation techniques inputs fair value measurements
ERFTAEEBARBEN
EFid) fRERM ERFAEEE AHIE AEEFAEZENEERE

Estimated average prices An increase in the

of raw milk per kg ranged  estimated average price of
from RMB4.17 to RMB4.83  raw milk would result in an
and RMB4.49 to RMB5.21 increase in the fair value
as at 31 December 2023 of milkable cows, and vice
and 2022, respectively. versa.

R2023F 2202212 A31  REHNEFT FIIERAIG I
B 8TREMNEMET ZBRAEGFNIAEEEMN -
HEBIRINTFARE417  RZIA -
TEARKE483TRARE

4.49TEARMEE217T ©

Discount rates for estimated An increase in the

future cash flows used were estimated discount rate
12% and 12% as at 31 used would result in a
December 2023 and 2022, decrease in the fair value

respectively.

of milkable cows, and vice

R2023F & 2022F 12 31  versa.
B FTERAAEETARIIR SR TR TR R NG E
EWRBRDFE12%M12% - BREFHAREERD &k
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38.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to
the valuation of biological assets and other financial asset
which were measured in Level 3 as at 31 December 2022
and 2023: (continued)

38. QAREHEEGE)

Significant unobservable

LA AR20224F Kk 2023F 12 A31 B4
BEMAE=ZFFENEMEREEHERN
AHEATABRGASENORE : (&)

Inter-relationship
between significant
unobservable inputs and

Type Valuation techniques inputs fair value measurements
EXRFRAEEGEABBHED

EFid) R BRI ERFAEEE AHIE REEFEZBHNEERRER

Beef cattle The fair values of newborn  Estimated local market An increase in the

A4 beef cattle and mature beef selling prices of newborn estimated local market

cattle were determined

by reference to the local
market selling prices.
MERG REARFO R B
BEN2REMTHEEBET -

The fair value of immature
beef cattle was determined
by reference to the local
market selling prices

of newborn beef cattle

and mature beef cattle,
adjusted by the estimated
incremental daily gain in
weight at the end of each
reporting period.
REMERR - REKARGFH
NAEE TS BRI E AR
ARLHEM T SEEET
WARR b5ty B IR S S 1T
FEE o

beef cattle per head
ranged from RMB1,080 to
RMB1,720 and RMB2,000
to RMB2,930 as at 31
December 2023 and 2022,
respectively.

20234 2022412 H 31
H  S8BRMEAFOHEE
WS EED AN F AR
1,080 TEARKE1,7207T
MARE?2 0002 AR
2,9307T °

Estimated local market
selling prices of mature
beef cattle per head
ranged from RMB16,926 to
RMB25,680 and RMB22,136
to RMB29,880 as at 31
December 2023 and 2022,
respectively.
%2023@&2022%12)% 31

GEKRRFHMEEE
i‘ﬂmif% EBARINFARK
16,926 7T E A R#25,6807T
M AR22 136 TE AR
29,8807T °

selling prices of newborn
beef cattle used would
result in an increase in the
fair value of beef cattle,
and vice versa.

FTER AT £ A0 (5T &
HEEB LEABERAGTHAR
BEEMN  RZMA -

An increase in the
estimated local market
selling prices of mature
beef cattle used would
result in an increase in the
fair value of beef cattle,
and vice versa.

FTER AR AR AR 0 (51 &
HEEB LEABERAGLHAR
BEEM  R2ZIFA -
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to
the valuation of biological assets and other financial asset
which were measured in Level 3 as at 31 December 2022

and 2023: (continued)

Type

pbic]

Valuation techniques

fh{E M

38.

Significant unobservable
inputs

BEAFUBERRARE

BrEE R MY EE

31 December 2023
202312 A31H

AREEFE (E)

LA AR20224F K 2023F 12 A31 B4
BEMAE=ZFFENEMEREEHERN
AHEATABRGASENORE : (&)

Inter-relationship
between significant
unobservable inputs and
fair value measurements
ERFTAEEBARBEN
AEEFAEZENEERE

Equity investment
designated at fair
value through other
comprehensive income
BERUAABEER
HESHt AH 2 mls
B B

The fair value of equity
investment designated at
fair value through other
comprehensive income is
estimated using the market
approach. Fair value is
estimated based on value
of comparable listed
companies and discounted
for lack of liquidity.
EERUARBEFESEHE
Bt A E At 2 W B0 AR AR
B AR BERATSE AL
e RABERBALR EH
NRIEEETEE - CE R
ZREIEMELIR -

The average daily gain in
weight per head ranged
from 0.87kg to 1.43kg and
0.87kg to 1.43kg as at 31
December 2023 and 2022,
respectively.
20234 [ 2022412 A 31
H SETHBEEEHFINT
0.87F%Z£1.43F 5% %0.87
FRE1.43F % o

Lack of marketability
discount (“LoMD”)
Rz @I

An increase in the average
daily gain in weight per
head would result in the
increase in the fair value

of the immature beef

cattle, and vice versa.
BETHBEEAEMNEEH
RCARFRR A EEEN -
2 IRA e

An increase in the

LoMD would result in a
decrease in the fair value
of the unquoted equity
investment.

TR Z B SH T 0 0 3 A0
BOE TR EREN A AE
BRD -

If the LoMD increases
by 1%, the estimated
fair value of equity
investment will decrease
by RMB1,453,000 and
RMB118,000 as at 31
December 2023 and 2022,
respectively.
20234 [ 2022F 12 A
318 - MR EEH M
ER1% - RIERER GG
ARBEEBE IR AR
#1,453,0007T R AR
118,0007T °
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38. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 38.

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments and
biological assets:

Assets:

As at 31 December 2023

DAEEE ()

DRBEEER
FTRIFAREEMIARENEEN AR
BEEER :

B

MN2023%E 12 A31H

Fair value measurement using
AREEFERANTEE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EXATABER
ERTIEHRE BEATEEGA WARE
(-8 BB (E=R (B=#) &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBT T AR¥T AR®T T
Biological assets — current EWEE - RE - - 512,402 512,402
Biological assets — non current £¥&E — IERE - - 3,541,014 3,541,014
- - 4,053,416 4,053,416
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38. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 38. AAEMEFE(H&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AREBEER (E)
As at 31 December 2022 (restated) M2022F12 A31H (KL E3)

Fair value measurement using
NABEFESRAUATEE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

BERTAHR

ERMISHRE EEAUBEEA N6
(B-®) 8BE=R (F=H) &&t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000

ARETT ARETT ARETTT ARETT

Equity investment designated

EERAAREERNE

at fair value through other BEEE AHAM

comprehensive income FEBEMNRERE - = 8,511 8,511
Biological assets - current EYEE — RE - - 380,267 380,267
Biological assets — non-current “£#1&&E — 3R E - - 3,450,288 3,450,288

- - 3,839,066 3,839,066

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FR BENBEYOBEAE —REFE R
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no AABEFEZEER  TEFE=ZHHEA
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both assets and SREH o
liabilities.
The movements in fair value measurements of biological EoMNEMEENLAABHEIENERNE
assets within Level 3 during the year are disclosed in note BRI SRR T 21 E -

21 to the financial statements.
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39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing bank borrowings,
equivalents and pledged deposits. The main purpose
of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the
Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

cash and cash

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s obligations
with a floating interest rate. The Group closely monitors
its interest rate risk by performing periodic reviews and
evaluations of its debt portfolio and gearing ratio. The
interest rates and terms of repayment of the bank loans
of the Group are disclosed in note 27 to the financial
statements. In the opinion of management, the Group has
no significant interest rate risk.

39.

cREAREEBERBE

E=d

A

AREENTESRTABEIBRITER
ReRReEEYREERENR - ZEFTR
Iﬁﬁ@IEEWz&ﬁ%l%%%@%ﬁ%
B  AREREAREEXBMERELNS
REMEREERAE - Pl EUKKIE R IE
FHERIE -

AEESRMIAEENETERAK
% - SN R P%J—L
EERERBTEHE
BEanT o

RN S
ﬂ/}lu@] |$ﬂ|§~\ ©
EELERRE - H

FRE

AEEHBEOMSNXEHER T RERE
BIZ BN R ENEFAR - ~AEERB
HEBEBESREAARLEXRETERERS
KeHE - mOIEAENEE R - AEBIRTT
BRI I EE BR N R M 27
B BEERS  ANEEWEE AN KA

B o
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other

39.

B 75 ¥R R B

31 December 2023
202312 A31H

cREREEBEREEEK (&)

F=Eg (F)

TRERTEMBEMEERFIENER
T REEHA (BR),FE (REETE

variables held constant, of the Group’s (loss)/profit before FEEFHTE) SN EREEBETZHNK
tax (through the impact on floating rate borrowings). RRE o
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in (loss)/profit
in basis points before tax
Bian (B8]),
Eehm, AEsm,
(R 2) OR2)
% RMB’000
% AR®T T
2023 20234
RMB AR 0.5 15,826
USsD e 0.5 1,285
RMB AR (0.5) (15,826)
uUsb ETT (0.5) (1,285)
2022 (restated) 20224 (&£ &%)
RMB AR 0.5 9,440
uUsb ETT 0.5 1,446
RMB AR (0.5) (9,440)
usb = (0.5) (1,446)
Foreign currency risk SNEE &L RS

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales, purchases or interest-bearing
bank borrowings by operating units in currencies other
than the units’ functional currencies.

AEBEBRZZEERR - ZFREBRKE K
BB BTN E B IAINE B AETTH
€ BERGRRITENK -
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39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. “RiEREEBEEZEREXK ()
AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued) SPEE R B (4E)
Therefore, the fluctuations in the exchange rates could Eit - EXREAUETELAEERNLEE
affect the Group's results of operations. In the opinion of BR-BEERR AKEIWESERINER
management, the Group has no significant foreign currency % o
risk.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end TRETASEERBRERARTA (FB)/
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change FMBRAEBEFZEMEEMEERIFIIE
in the USD exchange rates, with all other variables held RIERAT  HETERSGEBETE X
constant, of the Group’s (loss)/profit before tax and the IER
Group’s equity.
Increase/
(decrease)
Increase/ in (loss)/ Increase/
(decrease) in profit before (decrease)
USD rate tax in equity*
AT (&|)
ExEREM REgm, M,
(R 2) Om2) ()=
% RMB’000 RMB’000
% AR¥TT AR¥TR
2023 20234
If the RMB weakens against M AR HETRE
the USD (5) (1,923) (1,923)
If the RMB strengthens against i A R# X T HHE
the USD 5 1,923 1,923
2022 (restated) 20224 (&£ &%)
If the RMB weakens against MARBHETRE
the USD (5) (6,810) (6,810)
If the RMB strengthens against fif AR 34 3= T HE
the USD 5 6,810 6,810




39.

Annual Report 2023
=BoCEER

Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 ¥R R B

31 December 2023
202312 A31H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. “RiEREEBEEZEREEK ()
AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk FERE
The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy AEBEERERTREEBRINE=FET
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers X5  AEENBRAMBEEREEKRR
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit ETRXRHGNEPHUAZEREEERIET - 1t
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances N - BRI RS EUGRIB AR EITERIE - K
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group's SEEEMNERERRITTERX -
exposure to bad debts is not significant.
Maximum exposure and year-end staging BSREBRFERER
The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum TRIIBRBEAEREERENEEEEZR
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, EEEERE  EZERBHER (BRIEH
which is mainly based on past due information unless other HERAAEBANE T MBERARLE T
information is available without undue cost or effort, and %) RREWMEHRNFREERDHE -
year-end staging classification at the end of each reporting
period.
As at 31 December 2023 M2023F12H31H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A 7
FEEE ZHENGEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F-KB E-BR 2 E=RR  #trE &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®THn AR%Trn ARBTr ARETR AR%Tn
Trade receivables* JE LRI - - - 367,049 367,049
Financial assets included in AT IR - Kt
prepayments, other receivables FEREMEENMN
and other assets PREE
~ Normal** —FE~ 17,737 - - - 17,737
Pledged deposits BHEAES
— Not yet past due — HARE 209 - - - 209
Cash and cash equivalents BeRAEEY
- Not yet past due — HAREEH 273,999 - - - 273,999
291,045 - - 367,049 658,994
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39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39.

AND POLICIES (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 December 2022 (restated)

TREREEBENREEEK (&)

BESRBRERKE (E)
R2022F 12 A31H (K& E5)

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{8 AT H
FEE#E 2HEREEES
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
£ F-REBR  EZRER  BRE a5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTR ARETT ARETR
Trade receivables* JE W FRIE - - - 350,961 350,961
Financial assets included in FATERRIE -
prepayments, other receivables FEREMEEANR
and other assets TREE
- Normal** —E&E" 9,720 - - - 9,720
Long-term receivable REENGIE = 84,992 = = 84,992
Pledged deposits BHEAER
~ Not yet past due — HARE 5,986 = = = 5,986
Cash and cash equivalents RekReSEY
- Not yet past due — HAREE 397,946 = = - 397,946
413,652 84,992 - 350,961 849,605

*%

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the
simplified approach for impairment, information based
on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 22 to the
financial statements.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets is
considered to be “normal” when they are not past due
and there is no information indicating that the financial
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the
financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

* S 5= (B FE PR B R L 77 0% B0 e MR

*%

B BRI AR B R B R
H20WE -

SEATEN TR - H b RRIR R A A&
BTEREENEERR B ERERIA
RHRAREMAOERT - HEEER
BRR/IEF]- B EREENEER
BEWRAIFE] -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral.

At the end of each reporting period, certain concentrations
arose from credit risk of the Group’s trade receivables due
from the Group’s five largest customers as follows:

39.

B 75 ¥R R B

31 December 2023
202312 A31H

cREMREE B ERBUER ()
RS E RN FRER (F)

HRAEEERER AT NEERIFNE=D
EIRS  WEFWEERLS -

HIR - ARBERRENERETPK
EENETEERRERBERAT

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

R2023F R2022%F

12H31H 12H31H

Customer A BFEA 17% 22%

Customer B =FB 29% 24%

Customer C ®FEC N/A* 7%
TE A

Customer D EFD 6% 6%

Customer E EFE 4% 4%

Customer F BFEF 5% N/A*

NEA

61% 63%

* The corresponding trade receivables were not those * REREHR - MR FE WK IE D FF 8

due from the Group’s five largest customers at the end
of each reporting period.

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by establishing
credit verification procedures. Management determines that
there are minimal concentrations of credit risk within the
Group as the customers of the Group’s trade receivables
are recognised and creditworthy.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed
in note 22 to the financial statements.

WAEBE R RETFPEFIA

EERBOETREEDBBRIEERER
FETEE - EEERR  ARANEEER
RENFEFPIYER T BEER - FAE
EnEERBREDREERE -

BERASEREE KRR EERNEERRD
BEBURF BRI B MR 22FKE -

263



264

AustAsia Group Ltd.
AEEEERAT

Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 S R B

31 December 2023
2023%F 12 A31H

39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39.

AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial

assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected cash flows

from operations.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of each reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

THAREERRREE (&)

B B

AEBEAEEERDESTH TAERA
BeEmHER ZIEGZERHESRMIA
kemEE (NEKEHIE) NEHRNKERE
REXBNEMRSRE -

AEBNERBENSREHROIEEBER
(BHAKHARMBANRE D) AT :

As at 31 December 2023
A2023%F12831H

On demand
or less than

1year 1to5 years Over 5 years Total
REREE
RO F 1255 BiB5FE &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARBTT AR®T T AR®T T
Lease liabilities HE&E 148,020 521,703 2,077,688 2,747,411
Interest-bearing bank STERITIER
borrowings 2,122,121 1,543,675 - 3,665,796
Trade payables e FAR 785,309 - - 785,309
Financial liabilities included & AE b & 3TH &
in other payables and FEFTIE B A Bt
accruals BfE 268,876 - — 268,876

3,324,326

2,065,378 2,077,688 7,467,392




39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39.

AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2022 (restated)

Annual Report 2023
=BoCEER

Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 ¥R R B

31 December 2023
202312 A31H

THAREERRRBE (&)

B ()

R2022%F 12 A31H (KEF)

On demand
or less than
1year 1tob5years Overb5 years Total
REREER
gAMR1F 1E5F A5 &5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETTT ARETT ARBTT
Lease liabilities HEaE 145,553 519,318 1,661,547 2,326,418
Interest-bearing bank FTEERITIER
borrowings 1,011,018 1,424,951 75,489 2,511,458
Trade payables FEATFRIE 1,058,287 = = 1,058,287
Financial liabilities included & A E b B FRIE &
in other payables and FEFTIEEB A At
accruals BE 347,825 100,211 = 448,036
2,562,683 2,044,480 1,737,036 6,344,199
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39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximize shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not
subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the year.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is debt divided by capital. Debt includes interest-bearing
bank borrowings and lease liabilities. Capital includes
equity attributable to owners of the parent. The gearing
ratios as at the end of each reporting period were as
follows:

39.

TREREEBENREEEK (&)

ErER
AEEERNEREMNTI 2B BERRERNERR
BRENED  THFRENEARLLE
XFFEEBA FARCBRREE

AEBEEREERNER  AREBELERRD
BCMBRAEENE RS LETHE -
RERRABRERGERE  FAEEJEHE
AR B ALS - MRFRREE AR ITT
AL o AEBEAZAEIMNBIE NN E AR Z R
MRE - NERFE  EREANER K

AEBEEREAR B R (AMERFER N
BER)ERER - BHERARRITERK
HEREBE BAXABRRSAREE ARIGE
o REMEMRNEAABLRET -

2023 2022

2023F 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBET T

(Restated)

(g&E5)

Interest-bearing bank borrowings sHEIRTTER 3,400,323 2172,437
Lease liabilities HEAR 1,505,227 1,330,524
Debt &% 4,905,550 3,502,961
Equity attributable to owners of the parent HREHB AEGER 5,075,666 5,573,801
Gearing ratio ERAEL R 97% 63%
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 40. ZAARB#FERRE
COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the REREHR - ARBNF MR KE RN
Company at the end of each reporting period is as follows: ™
31 December 31 December 1 January
12A31H 12A31H 1A1H
2023 2022 2022
2023%F 20224 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREFT ARETT
(Restated) (Restated)
(fE=5) (& E5)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REB R AR E 3,103,948 3,550,925 3,582,120
Equity investment designated at fair value BEBUNAREEGER
through other comprehensive income HEHAEMEE
Yas R iER & - 8,511 5,203
Long-term receivable REENGRIR - 84,992 75,584
Total non-current assets FrBEELE 3,103,948 3,644,428 3,662,907
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayments, other receivables BB - EfhEKTE R
and other assets HpEE 304,199 204,087 221,704
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEED 9,028 159,632 6,252
Total current assets REBEERE 313,227 363,719 227,956
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEBaE
Other payables and accruals Hib R HIEREIEE 21,367 1,509,501 1,374,041
Share-based payment liability PR AERENRREE - = 29,247
Loans from a former shareholder RE—BAIREER - = 40,167
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERTER 124,795 225,414 150,032
Tax payable FETLR 37 36 33
Total current liabilities mEaEeR 146,199 1,734,951 1,593,520
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) RBEE/(BF) FE 167,028 (1,371,232) (1,365,564)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EELAERRBDEE 3,270,976 2,273,196 2,297,343
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERITER 132,130 63,712 266,736
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIEEE 4,335 4,179 3,825
Total non-current liabilities EnBBELE 136,465 67,891 270,561
Net assets BEFE 3,134,511 2,205,305 2,026,782
EQUITY i
Share capital & 2,792,706 2,432,340 1,892,652
Reserves f#1E 341,805 (227,035) 134,130
Total equity ERnE 3,134,511 2,205,305 2,026,782
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2023%F 12 A31H

40.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

Note:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

40. AQFMBRRE ()

et -

ARARWHEBEAT -

Fair value
reserve of
financial
assets at
fair value Foreign
through other currency Share
comprehensive Treasury translation option Accumulated
Share capital income shares reserve reserve losses Total
RAABEE
BEZHHA
Efr2EhES
e [EERE ERRG  ERERE BRERE 2itFR ait
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT  ARETR
At 31 December 2022 and R02F12A318 R
1 January 2023 (restated) 20235 1A18 (E5) 2,432,340 (43,367) - (67,901) 24,707 (140,474) 2,205,305
Loss for the year Engi - - - - = 543,127 543,127
Exchange differences related o EENERAEN
foreign operations EiES 356,994 - - 67,901 (15,503) (17.971) 391,421
Change in fair value of an equity ~ WAAEEEAEES
investment at fair value AR 2 ERRS
through other comprehensive FERENAAER
loss, net of tax B8 BHk - (8,830) - - - = (8,830)
Total comprehensive loss for EMXEEELE
the year 356,994 (8,830) - 67,901 (15,503) 525,156 925,718
Issuance of shares pursuant RETEESRE
to the exercise of the kG
over-allotment option 3,312 - - - - - 3,372
Shares repurchased EERS - - (7,252) - - = (7,252)
Equity-settled share option NEREENERERH
arrangements - - 5421 - 1,947 - 7,368
At 31 December 2023 12023412318 2,792,706 (52,197) (1,831) - 11,151 34682 3134501
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 40.
COMPANY (continued)

AR BIRR T ()

Note: (continued)

Wizt - (&)

Fair value
reserve of
financial
assets at
fair value Foreign
through other currency Share
comprehensive translation option Accumulated
Share capital income reserve reserve losses Total
NN EEHE
BEEHIA
Hfr2EkES
SREENA
e BERE  ELERE BRERE 25 aif
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT  ARETR
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RN E12A31BR
(restated) 20221 1A (BE7]) 1,892,652 (46,111) 80,830 112,020 (12609) 202,762
Loss for the year (restated) EnER(EE3)) - - - - (127,865) (127,865)
Exchange differences related to foreign HENEHERNELZE
operations (restated) (8 5]) = = (148,731) = = (148,731)
Change in fair value of an equity investment NWAREBEFEAAEHIAL
at fair value through other comprehensive H2ENENREREN AL
income, net of tax (restated) BEEY - Rk (423) - 2,744 - - - 2744
Total comprehensive loss for the year EN2EGELE (EE5)
(restated) - 274 (148.731) - (127865)  (273852)
Issuance of shares upon listing on the REBBSM EETRG
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (restated) (&=5)) 175,575 - - - = 175,575
Issuance of shares pursuant to share REBRETLTHN
option scheme (restated) (7)) 202,647 = = = = 202,647
Capitalisation of listing expense (restated) EmRT AR (EF)) (16,411) - - - - (16,411)
Transfer from loan from a shareholder EEERE-TRRMER
(restated) (7)) 177,877 - - = = 177877
Equity-settled share option arrangements WEREENERETH
(restated) (HE5)) - - - (87,313) = (87,313)
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 R02E12A31BR
(restated) 20231418 (&5 2,432,340 (43,367) (67,901) 24,707 (140474) 2,205,305
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41. EVENTS AFTER EACH REPORTING PERIOD 41.

There are no material subsequent events undertaken by
the Company or by the Group after 31 December 2023.

42. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 42.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 27 March 2024.

REWPRER

R2023F 128318 2% AR AHAEE
MmEAIBFIFEAE

RETI R BB ®REK
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As of December 31,

M2A318
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
2023% 2002 2021F 2020 2019%
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AREFT ARETTT ARETFL ARETFT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E%3) (EE5) (& &75) (& &75)
REVENUE WA 3,924,360 3,802,915 3,365,025 2,790,879 2,423,416
Cost of sales HENK (3,906,318) (3,788,788) (3,348,677) (2,790,141) (2,423,602)
Gains arising on initial recognition of raw milk EWEREAABERBEENS
at fair value less costs to sell at the point of MNEBRRHE R KR
harvest 694,044 843,216 991,416 884,253 745,478
Gains arising from changes in fair value less Xﬁmfﬁ—’&/‘ﬁfﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁiﬁi
cost fo sell of beef catte & ke (3,624) 25,648 126,309 150,647 92,799
Gross profit 7 708,462 882,991 1,134,073 1,035,638 838,091
Other income and gains EtBA RYE 94,691 50,281 90,060 40,885 34,134
Losses arising from changes in fair value less REEMENEELLBERS
costs to sell of other biological assets ERRZHNER (667,883) (158,183) (72,961) (97,648) (83,057)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHRY (2,894) (2,899) (3,479) (4,357) (28,908)
Administrative expenses A (225,553) (334,442) (217, 421) (166,663) (118,027)
Impairment losses on financial assets EREERESE (97,000 = (31,592) = =
Other expenses R E (10,826) (46,027) (9 286) (23,263) (32,514)
Finance costs BENK (268,948) (219,797) (139,492) (93,801) (99,314)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING RERELEXBOTANE
OPERATIONS (469,951) 171,924 689,902 690,791 515,405
Income tax expense FEHEY (18,840) (13,845) (15,694) (7,681) (876)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING REFELEERNHEANE
OPERATIONS (488,791) 158,079 674,208 683,110 514,529
Loss for the year/period from a discontinued REBREBELBNER/
operation HREE - = = (22,332) (48,695)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD ER/HRAE (488,791) 158,079 674,208 660,778 465,834
Attributable to: IATALRELR:
Owners of the parent SRAEBA (488,791) 168,079 674,208 660,778 465,834
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As of December 31,

R12B318
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
20235 20225 20215 20205 20195

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AREFT ARETTT ARETFL ARETFT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

(8E5) (i E51) (lmE51) (mE51)

Total assets BEEE 11,177,364 10,740,386 8,768,081 6,364,642 6,770,821
Total Liabilities REEE 6,101,698 5,166,585 3,755,558 2,112,567 2,825,445
Total equity EnEs 5,075,666 5,573,801 5,012,523 4,252,075 3,945,376

Attributable to Owners of the Company YN PN 5,075,666 5,573,801 5,012,523 4,252,075 3,045,376
Non-controlling interests JEEiRiES - - _ _ _
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BERARR

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the RAFERNA » BrXESBBHIEN A THEEAET
following expressions shall have the following meanings: R

“‘AAG PSP"

[AAGHE R D5t 8l ]

“Annona”

[ Annona

“Audit Committee”

[BEtERBE®

“Board” or “Board of Directors”

[EFg]

“Companies Ordinance”

[ = &S]

“Constitution”

the AAG Performance Share Plan adopted by the Company on 3 July
2020, which was amended on 5 December 2022
RARIR2020F 7 A3 RERMHIAAGE MR M aTEl - ZatEIRN2022F 125
CHl

Annona Pte. Ltd., a private company limited by shares incorporated
under the laws of Singapore on 3 November 2009 and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Japfa

Annona Pte. Ltd. * —ZKK 20094 11 A3 BRI i A =E s A 2 AL A IR
MERRDF - BEENZENBE AT

the audit committee of the Board
EEgFTLEY

the board of directors of the Company

ARREES

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing
Rules

LR BIMERC PR B B E AT R

AustAsia Group Ltd., a company incorporated under the laws of
Singapore with limited liability on 17 April 2009

AustAsia Group Ltd. * —KMR2009F4 A17 BRI MESEE M I AE
R A

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended or supplemented from time to time
EREDF622F (R ARG (B TRHEET S 78 )

the constitution of the Company (as amended from time to time), adopted
on 11 November 2022 and effective from the Listing Date
RARMR2022F 11 A11 BERAWH L B AR £ R BB ETRR (CTRERT)
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“Controlling Shareholders”

[ AR

“Director(s)’

[E%]

‘ESG”
[ESG]

“ESG Report”
[ESGH#4]

“Global Offering”
[EIREE

“Group”, “we”, “our” or “us”

[ SE A4

“HK$” of “Hong Kong dollars”
[T

“Hong Kong”
(&8

“Japfa”

[fE3% ]

“Listing’
[ ]

has the meaning given to it in the Listing Rules and, unless the context
requires otherwise, refers to the group of Controlling Shareholders
comprising Mr. Renaldo Santosa, Ms. Gabriella Santosa, the Scuderia
Trust, Highvern Trustees Limited (as trustee of the Scuderia Trust),
Magnus Nominees Limited, Fidelis Nominees Limited, Fusion Investment
Holdings Limited, Rangi Management Limited, Tasburgh Limited and
Tallowe Services Inc.

BB FmARAFAETHEE - BERXEZSHFES - fEHRenaldo Santosast
4 + Gabriella SantosaZz =t * Scuderia Trust * Highvern Trustees Limited
(fEA&Scuderia Trustf 5L A) * Magnus Nominees Limited * Fidelis
Nominees Limited * Bl &R &EZEKR B AR « Rangi Management Limited
Tasburgh Limited & Tallowe Services Inc. 48R &) — 481 AE A% 3R

the director(s) of the Company

ARRES

Environmental, Social and Governance
RE - g RER

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R g RERWRE

the Hong Kong public offering and the international offering of the Shares

BRARNHNEBLBARBEREREE

the Company and its subsidiaries
RRATREME AR

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BREEE®ET

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PEIEBRRITRIE

Japfa Ltd., a company incorporated in Singapore on 8 October 2008 and
listed on the Mainboard of SGX-ST (stock code: UD2)

£8 - —KMN2008F 10 H 8 BAEF MIX T AL KA FT AP E IR E 82 Al
(FEHNHE - UD2)

The listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
M An FERGE B2 PR E AR =T



“Listing Date”
[ 7 B
“Listing Rules”
[Er#RAl
“‘Model Code”

BTl

“Nomination Committee”

[REZEE]

“PRC” or “China”

[

“Prospectus”

Kl e e

“RMB”
AR

“Remuneration Committee’

[FHEZE® ]

“RSU”
[ PR HIR ) B0 |

“RSU Scheme”

[ BRI fn B85t 2

“SFO”

(R HEEE)]
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BERARR

30 December 2022, being the date of listing of the Shares of the
Company on the Stock Exchange
2022F 12 B30 H » AR AR BRI AP LA H AR

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, as amended or supplemented from time to time
(BEEBMARIMBERARZER LR (EIRHERTS M)

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
set out in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules
FTARBIM SR CIFT®E EMEITAEEHITESF X SNIZETA

the nomination committee of the Board

EEgR%%ES

the People’s Republic of China, but for the purposes of this annual report
only, except where the context requires, references in this annual report
to PRC or China exclude Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

mEARAME  BEERAFRME - BXEBESBMEN  AEREPERE
MABERE  RFIRAE

The prospectus of the Company dated 16 December 2022
RATABA2022512 16 H 2 BRERE

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

FREEEEEEARKE

the remuneration committee of the Board

EEEFHNERES

restricted share units granted under the RSU Scheme
IRIR IR B A 19 B ALAT B T 80 2R I A 1) B L

the post-IPO RSU Scheme adopted by the Company on 5 December
2022
RARR2022F 12 A5 RERAK B R AR E SRR G D B2

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), as amended or supplemented from time to time
BAEEDIEST1 E(FE 7 RIBE RN (RS S7T)
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BERARR

“Shares”

[ Bt ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[ AR

“Singapore”

[ 37 3 |
“Singapore Companies Act”
[ R ELED ]

“Stock Exchange”
[ Bt 22 FfT |

“U.S.” or “United States”
[Z£E |

‘Us$”
B

ordinary shares in the share capital of the Company

AR FBA B HBR

holder(s) of Shares
auESZEPN

the Republic of Singapore
TN H AN

the Companies Act 1967 of Singapore, as amended, supplemented or
otherwise modified from time to time

1967 FRENE) - EARHEE] ~ fa sk A MG 1Bk

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBMEXSMAR LT

the United States of America, its territories and possessions, any state of
the United States and the District of Columbia
ENERERE - AEL KB - EEMEMAIMN R fmt R R

Dollars, the lawful currency of the U.S.

XEMNEEE]RET
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